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622 E. Market Street, Rockport, Texas 78382

February 18, 2015

The Honorable Mayor, City Council and City Manager
City of Rockport, Texas

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Rockport, Texas for
the year ended September 30, 2014, is submitted. This report was prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles on a basis consistent with the
prior year. The preparation of the annual financial report and all financial information in
the report is the responsibility of the City. The scope of the independent auditor’s
examination is to render an opinion on the financial information in the Annual Financial
Report. Complete details concerning the City’s fiscal year activities and related costs
are presented in the enclosed narratives and financial statements.

This Letter of Transmittal and the Management’s Discussion and Analysis are
management’s opportunity to communicate aspects of the overall financial condition,
details of which are frequently obscured or submerged in financial statements,
schedules, and/or tables. The attached organizational chart provides a pictograph of the
lines of authority and responsibility with the system.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The Charter of the City of Rockport requires that the City Council appoint
certified public accountants, who will be responsible to the Council, to perform an
independent audit of all funds and group of accounts of the City on an annual basis.
The firm of Michael Amold P.L.L.C. was selected by the Council to perform this
function. Generally accepted auditing standards and the standards set forth in the
General Accounting Office’s Government Auditing Standards were used by the auditors
in conducting the engagement. The auditors’ report on the basic financial statements
and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial

section of this report.

Phone: {(361) 729-2213  Fax:; (361) 790-5966
www.cityofrockpori.com




MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

The report is published to provide to the City Council, to our citizens, and to
representatives of financial institutions and other interested persons, detailed
information concerning the financial condition of the City government. To that end, the
report has been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The City’s accounting system has been designed fo provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance regarding:

e The safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition,
and

e The reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and
maintaining accountability of assets.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should
not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and the evaluation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgment by management. All internal control evaluations occur
within the above framewoik,

GOVERNING BODY

The City was incorporated on May 29, 1871 under the laws of the State of Texas
and adopted the Council-Manager form of government on April 12, 1983. The City
Council is composed of the Mayor and four council members. The City Council and
Mayor are responsible for enacting ordinances, resolutions, and regulations governing
the, City, appointing members of various statutory and advisory boards and the City
Manager, City Secretary, City Attorney, Municipal Judge and Alternate Municipal
Judge. As chief administrative officer, the City Manager is responsible for enforcement
of laws and ordinances and appoints and supervises the heads of departments of the City

Organization.

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION

The Department of Finance operates under the direction of the Finance Director,
who is appointed by the City Manager; with the consensus of the City Council.
Activities of the Department of Finance are control of, custody and disbursement of
City funds. Other activities of the department include risk management, payroll,
purchasing, computer management and the preparation of the annual budget and interim
and annual financial reports.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT AND ITS SERVICES

Services provided by the City under the general governmental functions include
police, street maintenance, public improvements, planning and zoning, engineering,
traffic control, parks operation and maintenance, code enforcement, building permits,
floodplain management, building, plumbing, electrical inspections and general and
administrative services., A private firm provides solid waste collection and disposal
services under a contract with the City. In addition, water, natural gas, and sewer, and
the community aquatic park services are provided under an Enterprise Fund concept,
with user charges set by the City Council to ensure adequate coverage of operating
expenses and payments on outstanding debt.

The Community Aquatic Park is considered to be a blended component unit of
the City. The City acts as the “managing partner” of the County wide governmental
“joint venture” consisting of the City of Rockport, Aransas County, and the Town of
Fulton. Policy is set by a Swimming Pool Operations committee which consists of a
voting member from the city and county, plus a citizen member of the City Parks Board
and the Director of Parks and Leisure Services.

The City of Rockport and Aransas County entered into an Interlocal Agreement
creating the City/County Communications Center, combining dispatch services. The
agreement created a Dispatching Services Board consisting of one representative from
each entity and the Dispatch Administrator.

Additional Interlocal Agreements between the City of Rockport and Aransas
County help to eliminate the duplication of services, and help reduce costs for both
entities. These include Animal Control Services, Jail and Detention Services, Road
Construction and Maintenance within the city limits of Rockport, Septic System
Inspections, Sanitation Services and Tax Collection.

A countywide Geographic Information System (GIS) was created with the City
of Rockport, Aransas County and Aransas County Appraisal District. Each entity will
be responsible for the creation and maintenance of their own overlays.

The Aransas County and City of Rockport Public Safety Center completed a
joint law enforcement office building housing the Rockport Police Department and the
Aransas County Sheriff’s Office. This is another example of the City and County
joining together to save taxpayers dollars. Created by an Interlocal Agreement, the
venture is a 50/50 split between the City of Rockport and Aransas County for all
maintenance and expenses related to the Public Safety Center.
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On May 30, 2008 the City purchased Aransas Natural Gas Company, a privately
owned natural gas company located in Rockport. The Natural Gas Division provides
service to Rockport, the Town of Fulton and Aransas County as far north as Lamar.
(See more in the Management, Discussion and Analysis section)

BUDGETING

In accordance with the City Charter, on or before the first regular scheduled
meeting in August, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed budget
and budget message for the fiscal year commmencing the following October 1. The
proposed budget shall contain the budget message prepared by the City Manager,
detailing estimates of all revenue and expenditures, debt requirements, and a draft of the
budget ordinance. The City Council shall review the proposed budget and make any
appropriate changes prior to publishing the final budget.

The budget message explains the budget in fiscal terms and in terms of the work
submitted with the budget. It outlines the proposed financial programs of the City for
the ensuing fiscal year, the capital program, and capital projects for the budget year.
The budget message will describe the important features of the budget and indicate any
major changes from the current year in financial policies, expenditures and revenues
including the reasons for such changes.

The budget shall provide a complete financial plan of all City funds and
activitics and shall be in such form as the City Manager deems desirable or the City
Council may require, The detailed line item budget is presented for administrative
control. It shall be arranged to depict proposed expenditures and the means of financing
them for the upcoming year, along with comparative figures for actual and budget
income and expenditure for the preceding fiscal year; budgeted and estimated income
and expenditure for the current fiscal year; and actual income and expenditure of the
current year projected to year estimates for the current years.

The budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance on or before
September 27. Please refer to Note “A” in Notes to the Financial Statements for more

detail on budgets and budgetary accounting.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The City of Rockport is the county seat for Aransas County and is located 30
miles northeast of Corpus Christi. There are approximately 15.0 square miles of land
within the City’s corporate boundary.
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'ECONOMIC TRENDS

Ranked in The 100 Best Small Art Towns of America, and recognized among the
top retirement spots in the nation by America’s Best Places to Retire, Rockport is a
wonderful place to live and visit alike. Gulfscapes Magazine’s “2011 Readers Choice
Best Gulf Coast Towns” listed Rockport number four in the top ten. In 2009 Rockport
was hailed as a coastal dream town by Coastal Living Magazine. Belfer Homes and
Gardens in its April 2007 issue listed Rockport-Fulton the number five destination as a
“long weekend hotspot” for spring migration bird watching. Texas Meetings and
Events list Rockport-Fulton as a great Gulf Coast getaway for a business meeting, board
meeting, etc, The Today in America television show, hosted by Terry Bradshaw
featured Rockport and Fulton as one of the “Best Places to Live and Visit.” The
segment can be found at http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Pub6_cqu2Qay .

Property values in the City of Rockport increased from $538,391,491 in 2000 to
$1,468,534,983 in 2014, This can be atiributed to the annexation of several areas,
increased property values, as well as, the increase in development within the City.

Permits for single family homes have increased from approximately 66 annually
to 78 in 2014, largely due to the economic conditions of the country realizing a slight
improvement. Rockport is made up largely of second homes, with the slight growth in
the market these home staits have increased. The population of Rockport has grown by
27% in the last ten (10) years going from 7,385 in the U.S. Census Bureau 2000 Census

to 9357 as of 2011.

Sales tax revenues have increased from $1,117,080 in 2000 to $2,183,768 in
2014. This is an 83% increase in sales tax revenues over a twelve (12) year period.
Winter Texans and summer visitors have helped in the increase of sales tax.

The City has taken several steps in recent years to enhance the quality of life for
the citizens of Rockport. In the past few years the City has purchased 50 acres of land to
keep as green space and several acres behind the Memorial Park for expansion of that
park in the future. The Hike and Bike Trail that was partially funded by a TxDOT grant
has been completed and very well utilized for the Tule Park. A grant from Texas
Department of Agriculture (Texas Yes) helped complete a beautification project on
Austin Street. The project converted the four lane boulevard to a two lane street with
diagonal parking, which provides greater pedestrian and handicapped street crossing

safety.



MAJOR INITIATIVES

The City’s staff, following specific directives of the City Council and the City
Manager, has been involved in a variety of projects throughout the year. These projects
reflect the City’s commitment of ensuring that its citizens are able to live and work in a
highly desirable community and include the following:

South Rockport Regional Drainage GLO 100% Grant- The City of Rockport
received a $1,000,000.00 grant from General Land Office (GLO) for purchasing
and upgrading existing storm water sewer system including storm sewer pipe
ranging in size from twenty-four inches to forty-two inches, concrete box
culverts ranging in size from four feet to eight feet wide, road and driveway
culverts, junction boxes, End Slope Treatments (EST), and concrete headwalls,
In addition, the City of Rockport will petform repairs to city streets and state
highways, adjust impacted waterlines, and perform site work associated with the
construction. Construction will take place at the following locations: 1% street
from Bronte street (SH35) to S. Ann street; Infersection of 2™ street and Bronte
street (SH 35); Intersection of E. 5" street and S. Mathis sireet; Intersection of E.
5% street and S. Pear! street. Proposed improvements will significantly increase
the capacity of the storm sewer system and reduce flooding.

South Side Wastewater system Improvement — Construction of a sewer
collection system off-site force main began in December, 2012 and has been
completed. Cost of the project was $1,284,530 and was paid from 2007
Construction bond funds. The city constructed the sewer collection system off-
site force main which included the existing lift stations, other than the Islands of
Rockport Lift Station which the Developer constructed upon approval by the
city. The city also constructed all force mains from the Islands of Rockport Lift
Station to the existing lift station on First Street and gravity collection lines. To
recover some of the costs associated with the project, the City intends to collect
pro rata fees from developers who request sewer service from the city and must
connect to the sewer collection system off-site force main in order to obtain such
service, This project greatly increases the ability to receive sewer service on the
south part of Rockport.
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BUDGET AS COMPARED TO ACTUAL

General Government Fund Revenues — Budget as Compared to Actual

The General Government Fund Revenues are budgeted based on historical
information and the current economic climate of the City. For a detailed comparison of
actual General Governmental Fund revenues with budget amounts, see “Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget (Non-
GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual — All Governmental Fund Types and
Governmental Expendable Trust Funds: in the financial section of this report (Exhibit

A-2).

General Governmental Fund Expenditures — Budget as Compared to Actual

The proposed expenditures in the General Governmental Funds are budgeted
based on historical demand for services and inflationary trends. For a detailed
comparison of actual General Governmental fund Expenditures with budgeted amounts,
sece “Combined State or Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) and Actual — All Government Fund Types and
Governmental Expendable Trust Funds” in the financial section of this report (Exhibit

A-3).

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The City had no fiduciary funds at September 30, 2014.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The Proprietary Funds are those funds that are self-supporting. The Proprietary
Funds of the City include the Utility Fund, Sanitation Fund, Natural Gas IFund, and
Community Aquatic Park Fund. The Utility System Fund operates with revenues
generated by the sale of water and wastewater services. The Natural Gas Fund operates
with revenues generated by the sale of natural gas. The Sanitation Fund is used to
record all revenues and expenditures for the Solid Waste contract, The Community
Aquatic Park Fund accounts for all revenues and expenditures for the community

aquatic park.

The operating expenditures are those incurred by the delivery of those services.
A more complete discussion of the financial operations of this fund can be found in
Notes A and L. As shown below, both the revenues and expenditures were increased

from the prior year.
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AD VALOREM TAXES

State statutes require the value of the property as of January 1 of each year be
used as the basis for calculating ad valorem tax for the ensuing fiscal year. The
estimated adjusted taxable value of property in the City at January 1, 2013 was
$1,434,887,615 and was taxed at $.327728 per one hundred dollars of assessed value
resulting in an adjusted tax roll (taxes receivable) of $4,702,528.

Collections

Current taxes of $4,330,781 representing 98.03% of the adjusted tax roll were
collected during fiscal year 2013-2014. The collection rate was comparable to the year
end, Current tax collections have exceeded 97% in each of the last ten years.

Allocation of Ad Valorem Taxes

The revenue to be received from current tax collections is distributed between
the General Fund and the Debt Service Fund according to the rates for allocation set
when the budget ordinances are adopted, Allocation of property tax revenues by
purpose for fiscal year 2012 and the preceding four years is given in the following table.
The amounts in the table are per one hundred dollars of assessed value.

L0008 2009 20100 2011402012 2013

General 168320 165133 157307 158338 172497  .185090

Fund

G.0.Debt- 130680 ¢ [133548 | 152701 0150552 ;153327  .142638

Total 299000 298681 310008 308890  .325824 327728
AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its comprehensive
annual financial report for the year ended September 30, 2013, This is the eleventh year
that the City has applied for and received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded
a Certificate of Achievement, the City published an easily readable and efficiently
organized basic financial report. This report satisfies both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe
that our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate
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of Achievement Programs’ requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the City also received the GFOA’s Award for Distinguished Budget
Presentation for its annual appropriated budget since October 1, 2002, The budget for
October 1, 2014 has been submitted for review and notification of an award is awaited.
In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the City’s budget
document is judged on proficiency in several categories including policy
documentation, financial planning and organization,

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been
accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the
Finance Department, The City Manager, the entire City staff, and the City Council for
their interest and support in planning and conducting the financial operation of the City
in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Patty Howard
Director of Finance
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Michael A. Arnold, PLLC

501 E. MARKET CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT PHONE (361) 720-3545
FAX  (38%) 790-0692

P.0. BOX 1266
ROCKPORT, TEXAS 78381-1266

To the City Council

City of Rockport, Texas
622 E. Market
Rockport, Texas 78382

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Rockpori, Texas ("the Cily")
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2014, and the relaied noles io the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principfes generaily accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material missiatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibilily is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Staies of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audiling Standards, issued by ihe
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounis and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
net for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit alsc includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as welt as evaluating

the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audil evidence we have cobtained is sufticieni and apprepriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions,




Opinions

fn our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respecls, the respeclive
financial position of the governmenial activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of City of Rockport, Texas as of September 30, 2014, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Informalion

Accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information identified as Required Supplementary
information In the table of contenis be presenied fo supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Siandards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financiat
statements in an appropriate operaticnal, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
precedures to the Required Supplementary Information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statemenis. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that colleclively
comprise the City of Rockport, Texas's basic financial statements. not required parts of the basic financial
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis
as required by U. S. Office of Management and Budget Clrcular A-133, Audits of Stales, Local Governmenls,
and Non-Frofif Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used fo prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
olher records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in ali material respects in relation to the basic financial

statements as a whole.

The stafistical information section not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance

on it.




Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Governmen! Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 18,
2015 on our consideration of City of Rockport, Texas's internal control over financial reporiing and on our tests
of its compliance with cerlain provisions of laws, regulations, coniracts, and grant agreemenis and other
matters. The purpose of that report is fo describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that festing, and not to provide an opinion on internal corrol over
financial reporling or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Rockport, Texas's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Respectfully submitied,

DN 7 et Pt <

Michael A. Arnold, PLLC

Rockport, TX
February 18, 2015




 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Rockport’s financial performance provides an
overview of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014.
Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter on page i and the City’s financial
statements, which begin on page 13.

Financial Highlights

o The assets of the City of Rockport exceeded its liabilities at the close of 2014 by
$39,845,653(net assets), Of this amount, $3,050,055 (unrestricted net assets) may
be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e The government’s total net assets increased by $3,010,220 in 2014,

¢ At the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $11,929,368, a decrease of 6% in comparison
with the prior year. Approximately $3,011,065 (23%) of this total amount is
available for spending at the government’s discretion.

e The General fund reported an unassigned fund balance of $3,011,065 or, 49% of
total general fund expenditures,

o The City’s total long-term debt increased by $2,384,448 (17%) during the current

fiscal year.
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic
financial statements, The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1}
government-wide financial statements, 2) notes to financial statements, and 3) combining
and individual funds. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition
to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of

the City is improving or deteriorating.
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets

changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
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cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that
will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, (e.g. uncollected taxes and earned but

unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of
Rockport that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues
(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).
The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public
works, tourism, culture and recreation and interest and fiscal charges. The business-type
activities of the City include the Water, Wastewater and Natural Gas Utility System,
Sanitation, and the Community Aquatic and Skate Park.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 13 and 14 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Rockport, like other
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Rockport can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
Currently, the City does not have any fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year, Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact
of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities.

The City maintains thirteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement
of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund balances for a General Fund, Debt Service
Fund, and the Capital Improvements Funds, all of which are considered to be major funds.
Data from the other seven governmental funds are combined ito a single, aggregated




presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance

with this budget,

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 13 through 15 of
this report.

Proprietary Funds, The City maintains four different types of proprietary funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities
in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for
its Utility System, Natural Gas System, Sanitation and the Community Aquatic Park.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the Utility System, Natural Gas System, Sanitation and the Community
Aquatic Park. Only the Utility System Fund is considered to be a major fund of the City.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 16 through 27 of this
report,

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 28

through 47 of this repot,

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,
this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of
Rockport’s operations. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with
non-major governmental funds and internal service funds are presented immediately
following the required supplementary information on pensions. Combining and individual
fund statements and schedules can be found beginning on page 48 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the City of Rockport, assets exceeded liabilities by
$39,845,653 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

$59.0 million or 70%, reflects the City’s investment in capital assets {(e.g. land, buildings,
machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire these assets which is still
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to




repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Net Assets at September 30, 2014

Table 1

Assets
Current and Other Assets
Restricted Assets
Capital Assets, net of
accumulated depreciation
Total Assets

Deferred Outfiow of Resources
Total Assets and Deferred

Liabilities
Current & Due Within Cne
Year
Dug in More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflow Resources
Total Liabilities and Deferred

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Unrestricted
Total Net Assels

Governmental Activities Business Type Activities

Total Government

2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014
$ 5,172,754 § 5,880,655 $ 7,020,865 $§ 4,897,447 $12,202,619 $ 10,778,102
8,134,648 7,046,943 1,624,446 7,587,807 9,769,064 14,634,750
23,300,485 24,869,884 33,701,551 34,117,818 67,002,036 58,977,702
36,607,887 37,787,482 42,355,862 46,603,072 78,963,749 84,380,554
$ 518,371 998,726 $§ 290,206 353,625 % 808,577 1,352,351
$37,126,258 § 38,786,208 $42,646,068 46,956,697  $79,772,326 $ 85,742,905
2,279,440 2,646,622 3,208,829 3,648,176 5,488,278 6,294,798
21,103,471 20,464,994 16,248,675 18,063,930 37,352,146 39,528,924
23,382,920 23,111,616 19,457,504 22,712,108 42,840,427 45,823,722
- - 96,467 84,408 96,467 84,408
23,382,920 23,111,616 19,663,971 22,796,514 42,936,894 45,908,130
11,137,914 13,719,663 16,147,439 22,172,690 28,285,353 35,892,553
451,153 591,401 183,366 182,073 634,519 773,474
1,154,271 1,363,328 6,761,292 1,1816,298 7,915,663 3,179,626
$13,743,338 $15,674,592 $23,002,097 $24,171,061  $36,835435  § 39,845,653




An additional portion of the City’s net assets (2%) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net
assets (8%) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors. It has been the practice of the City to finance major maintenance and
rehabilitation of infrastructure or invest in new capital assets by issuance of long term debt
and cautious and conservative draws on these unrestricted net assets, It is anticipated that
this will continue to be our practice in the future.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
governmental and business-type activities. These positive balances are indicative of the
conservative fiscal practices of the City with combine careful budgeting procedures and
moderate operating activities at all staff levels.

Changes in Net Assets

Table 2
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Government
2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014
Program revenues
Charges for services $622,316 $ 986,491 $ 10,798,384 $ 11,791,143 $11,420,700 $ 12,777,634
Operating grants and contributions 366,214 234,191 42,000 51,250 408,214 285,441
Capital grants and contributions 739,308 699,802 256,450 - 985 759 699,802
Total program revenues 1,727,839 1,920,484 $ 11,006,834 $ 11,842,393 $12824673 13,762,877
General revenues
Property taxes 4,379,318 4,534,427 - - 4,379,318 4,534 427
Sales taxes 2,051,342 2,231,798 - - 2,051,342 2,231,798
Franchise and other taxes 860,734 803,439 - - 860,734 803,439
Occupancy taxes 698,834 839,931 - - 698,934 839,931
Interest 48,287 42,240 16,076 11,848 64,363 54,088
Miscellaneous 54,618 173,247 - - 64,618 173,247
Total revenues 8,093,233 8,625,082 16,076 11,848 8,109,309 8,636,930
Expenses
General govermment 1,634,488 1,464,770 - - 1,534,488 1,464,770
Public safety 3,380,006 4,035,843 - - 3,390,096 4,035,843
Public Works 1,663,687 1,676,188 - - 1,663,687 1,576,188
Culture and recreation 914,460 961,048 - - 914,460 861,048
Tourism 536,505 640,589 - - 536,505 640,589




Environmental - - - -

Water and Sewer - - 7,840,317 7,668,005 7,840,317 7,668,005
Sanitation - - - - - -
Beach Park - - - - - -
Community Aquatic Center - - 333,267 397,675 333,267 397,675
Natural Gas - - 1,256,075 1,844 475 1,256,075 1,844,475
Interest and fiscal charges 908,935 769,851 - - 908,835 769 851
Total expense 8,848,171 9,448,289 9,429,659 _ 9.910.155 18,277,830 19,358,444
Change In net assets
Increase(Decrease) hefore transfers 972,901 1,097,277 1,683,251 1,944,086 2,656,152 3,041,363
Loss on disposilion of assets - - - - - -
Transfers 849,138 833,977 (849,138) {833,977} - -
Prior Period Adj (246,115) - (352,622} - (598,737} -
Net assels at beginning of year $12,167.414 $13,743,338 22,718,054 23,092,095 34,778,020 36,835,433
Net assets at end of year $13,743,338  $15,674,592 $23,092,097 $24,171,061  $36,835,435 30,845,853

The table above iilustrates the comparative detail of changes in net assets of the City of
Rockport.

Governmental Activities. Governmental activities include the functions of general
government, tourism, cultural and recreations, public safety and public works. Payment of
interest on long-term debt is also considered a governmental activity and it is considered a

class of activity but not a function of government. These are the basic services and cost

centers any city provides to iis citizens.

As shown in Table 2 and the Exhibit A-2 of the Basic Financial Statements, the expenses
incurred in providing these services are netted against the program revenues received by
the City for these services. Because the City is not a for-profit entity, the cost to deliver the
services far exceeds the program revenues generated. This deficit of new expenditures,
$7,527,805, is overcome by the general revenues of taxes, investment e¢arnings,
miscellaneous income and transfers in totaling $9,459,059. The overall change in Net
Assets resulting from govermmental activities at the end of the year was $1,931,254.

Business-Type Activities. As shown in Table 2 and in the Statement of Activities,
program revenues of the City’s business-type activities were $11,842,393 for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2014. Expenses for the City’s business-type activities were
$9,910,155, resuiting in net revenues of $1,932,238. After the non-program expenses,
$865,120 and revenues, $11,848 are added in, the total change in net assets for the business

type activities was $1,078,966.




In the Utility System Fund, the City has little control over the costs of the two products:
water and natural gas delivered to the City’s customers. Water is purchased from the San
Patricio Municipal Water District, and natural gas is purchased from fwo sources, South
Cross Energy and Gulf Coast Gas Gathering. Water rates were increased by 6.75% this
year, other than pass through increase due to increases from the supplier. The additional
revenue generated will be used to pay debt service for capital improvements. Wastewater
rates were also increased this year by 6.75%. The additional funds generated by this
increase will be used to make payments on the Cured in Place Pipe (CIPP) Project portion
of the 2007 Bond Issue and other projects. The City purchased Aransas Natural Gas
Company, a privately owned company, on May 30, 2008. Natural Gas rates were not
increased this year. The fuel adjustment rate is calculated each month based on the rate
natural gas is purchased for. The City contracts with McLain Decision Support Systems
each year to do a rate study to ensure that the revenues generated by the Ultility System
Fund will support the associated expenditures. This study includes the natural gas revenue

also.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City of Rockport uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The City’s funds fall imto two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements, In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined
ending balances of $11,929,368, a decrease of $692,667 compared to the prior year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $3,011,065. This fund balance is the
amount available without constraints from outside of the City to fund the City’s normal
operations. In order to illustrate the City’s ability to withstand a major disaster such as a
hurricane, it is worthwhile to measure the unreserved fund balance in terms of the number
of days of operations is could sustain. For 2014, the daily cost of operation in the general
fund was $16,920 (total current expenditures of $6,175,687 divided by 365 days in the
year). The City of Rockport’s unassigned general fund balance would be able to sustain
178 days in the event of disaster that interrupted normal revenue generation. The City of
Rockport makes every effort to keep the unreserved fund balance at 180 days.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights.

During FY 2013-14, the General Fund budget was not amended.
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Proprietary Funds. The proprietary funds ended 2014 with combined net assets totaling
$24,171,061. The proprietary funds include the Utility System Fund, Natural Gas Fund,
Sanitation, and the Community Aquatic & Skate Park. The Water and Sewer Fund and the
Natural Gas Fund are the only major funds in this group.

Proprietary Fund Budgetary Highlights.

During FY 2013-14, the proprietary finds were not amended.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets. The City of Rockport’s investment in capital assets for its governmental
and business type activities as of September 30, 2014 totals at $58,977,715 (net of
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes, land, buildings and
improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment, infrastructure and construction in
progress. The total increase in the investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year

was 3.5%.

Major capital asset events during 2014 include the following:

South Rockport Regional Drainage GLO 100% Grant- The City of Rockport
received a $1,000,000.00 grant from General Land Office (GLO) for purchasing
and upgrading existing storm water sewer system including storm sewer pipe
ranging in size from twenty-four inches to forty-two inches, concrete box culverts
ranging in size from four feet to eight feet wide, road and driveway culverts,
junction boxes, End Slope Treatments (EST), and concrete headwalls. In addition,
the City of Rockpoit will perform repairs to city streets and state highways, adjust
impacted waterlines, and perform site work associated with the construction.
Construction will take place at the following locations: 1 street from Bronte street
(SH35) fo S. Ann street; Intersection of 2™ street and Bronte street (SH 35);
Intersection of E. 5™ street and S. Mathis street; Intersection of E. 5™ street and S.
Pearl street. Proposed improvements will signitficantly increase the capacity of the
storm sewer system and reduce flooding.

South Side Wastewater system Improvement — Construction of a sewer collection
system off-site force main began in December, 2012 and has been completed. Cost
of the project was $1,284,530 and was paid from 2007 Construction bond funds.
The city constructed the sewer collection system off-site force main which included
the existing lift stations, other than the Islands of Rockport Lift Station which the
Developer constructed upon approval by the city. The city also constructed all
force mains from the Islands of Rockport Lift Station to the existing lift station on
First Street and gravity collection lines. To recover some of the costs associated
with the project, the City intends to collect pro rata fees from developers who
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request sewer service from the city and must connect to the sewer collection sysiem
off-site force main in order to obtain such service. This project greatly increases the
ability to receive sewer service on the south part of Rockport.

For a complete analysis of the changes in capital assets, the reader is encouraged (o review
Note D of the Notes of the Basic Financial Statements.

Long-Term Debt. The City of Rockport issued $3,610,000 in new Combination Tax and
Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2014 on June 24, 2014, The proceeds from the
sale of the certificates will be used for the purpose of paying the City’s combined
waterworks and sewer system (including but not limited to rehabilitation of water tanks),
the City’s gas system (including but not limited to the construction and equipping of a
condensed natural gas fueling facility and funding a distribution integrity management
program line replacement), to pay all or a portion of the legal, fiscal and engineering fees in
connection with the Projects, and to pay costs of issuance of the Certificates.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

During the budget process for fiscal year 2014-15 the elected and appointed officials
considered many factors including the forces driving the economy in their budget
decisions. The housing starts, development, and raw land being twrned into retail and
housing can each be measured by the number of new water connections recorded, An
increase in Hotel Occupancy Tax and sales tax indicate an increase in tourism, There has
been an increase in registered voters since 2000, going from 5,987 in 2006 to 6186 in 2010,
equating to a 4% increase. The population for Rockport is 9,357 as of 2011 which is up
from 8,766 in the 2010 U. S, Census.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to inform the citizens, taxpayers and customers of the City
of Rockport as well as its investors and creditors about the City’s finances and to provide
accountability for the public support that it receives. If you have any questions about the
report or need additional financial information, contact the Finance Director’s Office at the
City of Rockport, 622 E, Market Street, Rockport, Texas 78382.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS
Cash and investmenis
Receivables ( net of aliowances for uncollectibles):
Properly taxes
Other taxes
Accounts
Special assessments
intergovernmentat
Internal balances
Inventories
Restricted assels:
Cash and investments
Capital assels:
Land
Conlruction in progress
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Utifity system
Machinery and equipment
Infrastruciure
Accumulaled deprecialion
Total Assels

Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Deferred Loss on Bond Refunding
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued labilities
Accrued interest payable
Payable from restricted assels
Customer Deposits
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total Liabililies

Deferred inflow of Rasources
Deferred GGain on Bond Refunding
Totat Detferred Infiow of Resources

NET POSITION;
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted For:
Debt Service
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral pant of this statement.
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Governmental

Business-type

EXHIBIT A-1

Activilies Aclivities Total
4,914,286 $ 3,450,731 8,365,017
143,202 -- 143,202
492,108 - 492 108
93,458 1,331,202 1,424,660
7,208 4,137 11,345
115,086 - 115,086
356 (356} -
114,951 111,733 226,684
7,046,943 7,587,807 14,634,750
4,902,767 214,953 5,117,720
120,877 1,095,682 1,216,559
4,842,944 4,237,938 9,080,882
1,884,604 1,944,240 3,828,844
- 44,185,689 44,185,689
3,903,620 2,205,397 6,109,017
15,023,833 - 15,023,833
{5,818,761) (19,766,081) (25,584,842)
37,787,482 46,603,072 84,390,554
998,726 353,625 1,352,351
998,726 363,625 1,352,351
615,963 1,129,321 1,745,284
95,694 35,465 131,169
865,527 81,412 146,939
- 22,6986 22,696
-- 1,094,105 1,094,105
1,869,438 1,285,177 3,154,615
20,464,994 19,063,930 39,528,924
23,111,616 22,712,106 45,823,722
- 84,408 84,408
. 84,408 84,408
13,719,863 22,172,690 35,892,553
591,401 182,073 773,474
1,363,328 1,816,298 3,179,626
15,674,592 $ 24,171,061 39,845,653




CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Pragram Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Governmental Activities
General government $ 1,464,770 $ 16,624 $ - $ -
Public safely 4,035,843 727,069 214,664 102,508
Public works 1,576,188 242,798 -- -
Culture and recreation 961,048 - 19,527 597,294
Tourism 640,589 - - -
Interest and fiscal charges 769,851 - - -
Total governmental activities 9,448,289 986,491 234,191 699,802
Business-lype Aclivities:
Sanitation - 16,994 - -
Water & Sewer 7,699,148 9,219,874 10,500 -
Communily Aqualic Center 397,675 165,231 40,750 -
Natural Gas 1,844,475 2,389,044 - --
Tolal Business-type Aclivities 9,941,298 11,791,143 51,250

Total Primary Government

$ 19389587 $ 12,777,634 § 285441 § 699,802

General Revenues:
Propeny Taxes, Leived for General Puposes
Preperly Taxes, Levied for Debt Services
Sales Taxes
Franchise Taxes and Other Taxes
Occupancy Taxes
Unrestricted Investment Earnings
Other Revenues
Transfers
Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change In Net Assels
Net Assels - Beginning
Net Assets - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Net {Expense) Revenue and Changes in Nel Position

Governmental Business-lype
Aclivities Agctivities Total

$ (1,448,146} % {1,448,146)
{2,991,602) (2,991,602)
{1,333,390) (1,333,390}
(344,227) (344,227)
(640,589) {640,589)
(769,851) {769,851)
(7,527,805} (7,527,805)

$ 16,994 16,994

- 1,631,228 1,531,226
- {191,694) (191,694)
544,569 544,569

-- 1,901,095 1,901,095
(7,527,805) 1,801,085 (5,626,710)
2,570,420 - 2,570,420
1,964,007 1,964,007
2,231,798 - 2,231,798
803,439 - 803,439
839,931 -- 839,931
42,240 11,848 54,088
173,247 - 173,247

833,977 {833,977) -

9,459,059 (822,129) 8,636,930
1,831,254 1,078,966 3,010,220
13,743,338 23,092,095 36,835,433

$ 15,674,592 § 24,171,061 $ 39,845,653
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
BALANGE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS

Assels;
Cash and Invesimenis
Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles):

Properiy taxes

Other taxes

Accounts

Special assessments

Intergovernmental
Due from other funds
Inventories
Restricted assels:

Cash and investments

Total Assets

Liabilities:

Accounis payable

Accrued expenditures

Due to other funds
Toftal Liabilities

Deferred Outfiows of Resources
Unavailable property taxes
Unavailable spectal assessments
Unavailable taxes - Utilily Surcharge
Total Deferred Quiltows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Qutflows of
Resouices

Fund balances:
MNonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Toial fund balances

Totat Liabilities and Fund balances

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this statement.

16

T 204,920

78,905

$

General
Fund

2,679,280

79,905
203,221
1,654

421,030
58,047

3,443,137

211,869
82,151

79,905

374,025

58,047

3,011,065

3,069,112

3,363,232

$

63,297

528,104

Debt
Service

528,104

63,297

63,297

63,297

528,104

528,104




2007 Other
Certificate of Governmental
__ Obligation Funds

- $ 1,706,902
- 288,887
- 16,804
. 7.208
- 115,086
4,555,475 2,491,468
4,555,475 4,626,355
126,410 $ 267,812
.- 10,818
- 420,674
126,410 699,304
-- 7,208
- 16,756
23,964
126,410 723,268
4,429,065 3,538,344
-- 12,140
428,654

- (76,051}
4,429,065 3,903,087
4,555,475 $ 4,602,391
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$

13,216,368

1,119,834

1,287,000

~ 11,929,368

$

EXHIBIT A-3

Total
Governmental
Funds

4,914,286

143,202
492,108
18,458
7,208
115,086
421,030
58,047

7,046,943

606,191
92,969
420,674

143,202
7,208
16,756
167,166

58,047
8,495,513
12,140
428,654
2,936,014

13,048,202



EXHIBIT A-4

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Total fund batances - governmental funds balance sheet $ 11,929,368
Amounts reported for governmental aclivities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental aclivities are not reported in the funds. 24,851,160
Property taxss receivable unavailable io pay for current pericd expenditures are deferred in the funds, 143,202
The assets and liabilitias of internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the SNP. 53,131
Payables for bond principat which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. (19,168,142}
Payables for capital leases which are not due in ihe current pariod are not reported in the funds, {962,000}
Payables for bond interest which are not due in the current period are nof reporied in the funds. (65,527)
Payables for compensated absences which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. (346,024)
Other fong-term liabilities which are not due and payable in the current period are not reported in the funds. 738,486
Court fines receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 75,000
OBEP Obligation is not reported in the funds. (1,598,028)
Utility bill taxes unavaitable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 16,756
Assessments receivable unavallable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 7,208

$ 15674592

Net position of governmentatl activities - Statement of Net Position

The accompanying notes are an Integraf part of this statement,
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Revenue:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines
Inferest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Tourism

Capital outlay

Deabt service:
Principal
interest and fiscal charges
Bond issuance cost

Toftal expendilures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under} expendilures

Other financing sources {uses}:
Transfers in
Transfers out
Issuance of certificates of obligation
Premium on bonds sold
Interest on bonds sotd
Payment to refunding escrow ageni

Total other finaneing sources {uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying notes are an iMegral part of this statement.

General
Fund

$ 5,593,714
218,504

54,765

24,294

209,845

17,039

92,661

6,210,622

1,317,705
2,715,303
1,176,409

763,477

202,793

675887

35,135
937,093
(751,430)

185,663
220,798

2,848,314

$ 3,069,112

19

Debt
Searvice

$ 1,967,017

561

1,967,568

1,303,177
664,781
106,527

2,074,485

{108,917)

72,051

4,503,642
563,678
6,949
(4,962 452)
183,868

76,951

451,153

$ 528,104




2007
Certificate of
__ Obligation _

1,305,682

(1,220,351)

(1,220,351)

5,649,416

$ 4,429,065

Other
Governmental
Funds
$ 1,041,457
1,183,560
44,940
6,423

6,633
TT2.283,018

27,558
1,008,758

50,202
640,589
833,984

31,694
3,924

_ 2,597,400
(314,396}

587,343
{43,012)

544,331
229,935

3,673,152

$__3,903.087

20

EXHIBIT A-5

Total
Governmental
Funds

$ 8,602,188

218,504

1,312,278

24,294

254,785

35,291

99,294
10546834

1,345,263
3,724,061
1,176,409
814,379
640,589
2,342,359

1,334,871
668,705
106,527

12,163,163

{1.606,529)

1,596,487
(794,442)
4,503,642
563,678
6,949
(4,962,452)
913,862

(692,667)

12,622,035

§___11.929.368




EXHIBIT A-6

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Nel change in fund balances - fotal governmental funds 3 (692,667}
Amounts reported for govemnmental activilies in the Stalement of Activities
("SOA") are dilferent because:
Gapital outlays are not reporied as expenses in the SOA, 2,342,359
The depreciation of capital assels used in governmental aclivilies is nol reported in the funds. (778,782)
Ceriain properly tax revenues are deferred in ihe funds, This is the change in these amounts this year. (9,013}
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the SOA, 6,297,323
THe change in the OBEP liability is not reported in the funds. (161,202}
{increase) decrease in accrued interest from beginning of period to end of period. 34,078
The net revenue {expense) of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. {4,183}
Compensated absences are reported as the amount earmed in the SOA but as the amount paid in the funds. (1,638}
Certain utility bill receivables are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounis this year. 996
Proceeds of bonds do not provide revenue in the SOA, but are reported as current resources in the funds. (4,503,642)
Bond premiums are reported in the funds but not in the SOA. (563,678)
Amorlization of bond premiums are reported in the SOA, but not the funds. 48,917
Amortization of deferred refundind tosses {gains} are not reported in the funds. (74,834}
Other reconciling items (2,780}

Change in net position of governmental activities - Statement of Activities $ 1,931,254

i
!
;

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND AGTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Revenue:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General government

Public safety

Public works

Culture and recreation
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues {under) expendiiures
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fungd balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of this statement.

EXHIBIT A-7

Variance with
(GAAP Basis) Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
$ 5365632 $ 5365632 § 5593714 § 228,082
174,500 174,500 218,504 44,004
80,000 62,500 54,765 {7,735}
23,000 23,000 24,294 1,294
251,500 251,500 209,845 {41,655)
14,000 14,000 17,039 3,039
32,000 31,000 92,661 61,661
5,940,632 5,922,132 6,210,822 288,690
1,325,951 1,325,951 1,317,705 8,246
2,632,556 2,632,556 2,715,303 (82,747)
1,466,664 1,466,664 1,176,409 290,255
750,017 750,017 763,477 {13,460}
216,793 216,793 202,793 14,000
6,391,981 6,391,981 6,175,687 216,294
(451,349) {469,849) 35,135 504,084
1,083,072 1,083,072 937,093 {145,979)
{588,029) {589,029} {751,430) {162,401)
494,043 494,043 185,663 {308,380)
42,694 24,194 220,798 196,604
2,848,314 2,848,314 2,848,314 -
$ 2891008 § 2872508 $ 3,069,112 § 196,604
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROFRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS

Assals:
Current assels:
Cash and cash squivalents
Receivables { nat of allowances for uncolleclibles):
Accounts
Special assessments
Inventories
Total current assels

MNoncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable - noncusrent
Capital assets:

Land

Construction in progress

Buildings

Improvements other than buildings

Water system

Sewer systam

Natural gas system

Machinery and equipment

Accumulated depreclation
Total noncurrent assets

Total Assels

Deferred Quifiows of Resources
Deferred Loss on Bond Refunding
Tolal Deferred Qutflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Cue to other funds
Accrued intergst payable
Cuostomer deposils
Payable from restricled assets
Cempensated absences
Bonds and certificates of obligation -
current portion
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent fHabilitias:
Bonds and certificates of obligation payable
Compensated absences
Total noncurrent liabifities
Total liabllitles

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Gain on Bond Refunding
Tolal Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET ASSETS:
Investment in Capital Assels, Net of Related Dabt
Unrestricted Net Assels

Total Net Assels

The accompanying notas are an integral part of this stalement.

Enterprise
Fund

Water & Sewer
Fund

2,242,360

904,887
4,137
68,328

3,220,712

5,063,842
81,874

110,653

4,237,938

23,740,054
18,556,425

2,185,708
{18,524,136)

35,452,358

38,683,948

353,625

353,625

625,685
29,765

81,412
1,003,407

20,000

1,160,969

3,011,238

15,619,357
88,728

15,708,085
18,782,455

84,408
84,408

18,872,483
1,198,227

20,170,710

23

Entarprise
Fung
Naturat
Gas
Fund

958,161

139,665

42,405

1,140,231

2,523,965

1,095,682

1,889,210

{388,458)

5,120,399

6,260,630

104,208

206,808

3,030,716
14,710

3,045,426
3,488,521

1,985,475
775,634

2,761,109



EXHIBIT A-8

Nonmajor
Internal Service
Fund
Nonmajor Total
Enterprise Enlerprise Flaet
Funds Funds Fund
250,210 $ 3,450,731 $
204,776 1,249,328 -
- 4,137 -
. 111,733 56,904
454,986 4,815,920 56,904
- 7,587,807 --
- 81,874 -
104,300 214,953 --
.- 1,095,682 -
. 4,237,938 -
1,944,240 1,944,240 -
.. 23,740,054 -
- 18,556,425 -
- 1,889,210 --
19,689 2,205,397 17,448
(853,487) {19,766,081) {8,724)
1,214,742 41,787,499 8,724
- 1,669,728 46,614,306 65,628
- 353,625 -
.. $ 353,625 $ -
427,497 $ 1,129,321 3 9,772
1,935 35,465 2,725
356 356 -
81,412 --
598 1,094,105 -~
- 22,696 -
. 20,000 -
- 1,265,177 --
430,486 3,648,532 12497
- 18,650,073 --
-- 103,438 --
- 18,753,511 -
430,486 22,712,462 12,497
- 84,408 --
- 84,408 -
1,214,732 22,172,690 --
24,510 1,898,371 53,131
1,239,242 8 24,171,061 $ 53,131
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Enterprise Enterprise
Fund Fund
Natural
Water & Sewer Gas
Fund Fund
OPERATING REVENUES;
Charges for services $ 9,218,874 5 2,389,044

Total Operating Revenues 9,219,874 2,389,044

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Parsonal services 1,612,383 374,519
Contractual services 450,932 105,710
Maintenance 414,902 148,808
Supplies 3,628,589 1,135,011
Other 37,313 17,453
Depreciation 897,034 62,974

Totat Operaling Expenses 7,041,153 1,844,475

Operaling Income {Loss) 2,178,721 544,569
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Interest income 11,163 685
Intergovernmentat revenue - --
Inleresi expense (657,995) --

Total Non-operating Revenues {Expenses}) (646,832) 685
Net Income {Loss)} before Operating Transfers 1,631,889 545,254
Capital Contributions 10,500
TRANSFERS:

Interfund transfers in 266,261 -

Interfund transfers out (1,067,709) (164,684)
Change In Net Asssls 740,941 380,570
Net Assels, beginning of year 19,429,769 2,380,539
Net Assets, end of year $ 20,170,710 $ 2,761,100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this stalement,
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Nonmajor
Enterprise
Funds

182,225
182,225

173,743
26,471
27,418

102,593

1,384
66,066

397875

{215,450}

40,750

40,750

{(174,700)

132,155

{42,545)

1,281,787

1,239,242

Tota
Enterprise
Funds

11,791,143

11,791,143

2,160,645
583,113
591,128

4,866,193

56,150

1,026,074

9,283,303

2,507,840

11,848
40,750
(657,995)

__ (605397)

1,902,443

10,500

398,416
(1,232,393)

T 1,078,966

$

23,092,095

24,171,061
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EXHIBIT A-9

Nonmajor

Internal Service

Fund

Flest
Fund

504,134
504,134

160,486
18,783
19,017

339,417

301
1,745

540,249

(36,115)

-{36,115)

34,432
(2,500}

{4,183)

57,314
53,131




EXHIBIT A10

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF GASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Enterprise Funds
Water & Natural Nonmajor Service
Sewer Gas Enter. Funds Totals Funds

Cash Flows from Operaling Activitles:

Cash Recalved from Gustomers % 9,156,262 $ 2,362,713 182,225 § 11,701,200 $ 504,135
Cash Receipts (Paymenis) for
Operaling Transaclions with Other Funds -- -- - -
Cash Payments to Employees for Services (1,588,009} (365,286) {173,643} (2,126,938} {160,4886)
Cash Payments to Gther Suppliers for Geods and Services (4,349,370} {1,346,826) {171,514) (5,867,710} {379,708)
Net Cash Provided {Used} by Operating Aclivities 3,218,883 650,601 (162,932) 3,706,552 {36,059}
Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities:
Qperaling Grants Recelved - . 40,750 40,750
Transfers From Other Funds 266,261 - 132,155 398,416 34,432
Transfers To Other Funds {1,067,709) (164,684) - (1,232,393) {2,500)
Net Cash Provided (Used} by Non-capital Financing Activities {801,448) {164,684} 172,905 (793,227) 31,932
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Issuance of Long-term Dabt 1,381,815 3,382,211 -- 4,764,026 .-
Principal and Interest Paid {1,637,775) -- -- (1,637,775} -
Acqulsilion or Construction of Capital Assels (340,136) (1,095,682} (6,597} (1,442,415) -
Proceeds from sale of capital assels -- - --
Amounts paid for bond issuance - = - - -
Contributed Capital 10,500 - - 10,500 --
Net Cash Provided {Used) for Capilal & Related Financing Activities {585,598) 2,286,529 {6.597) 1,694,336 -
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Matoring of lnvestments 106,000 - -- 100,000 -
Interes! and Dividends on Investimentis 11,163 685 -- 11,848 -
Net Cash Provided {Used) for Investing Activities 111,163 685 -- 111,848 -
Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,943,002 2,773,131 3,376 4,719,509 4,127)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 5,363,200 708,995 246,834 6,319,029 4,127
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 3 7,306,202 $ 3,482,126 250,210 $ 11,038,538 & -
Reconclliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Cparating Income {Loss} $ 2,178,721 § 544,569 {182,875)$ 2,540,415 $ (36,115)
Adjusiments to Reconcile Cperating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operaling Aclivities
Depreciation and Amortization 897,034 62,974 65,740 1,025,748 1,745
Provision for Uncollectible Accounts - - - -- -
Change in Assets and Llabifities:
Decrease {Increase} in Receivables (161,719) (26,331) (13,447} {201,497} -
Dacrease {Increase) in Invenlories 20,788 19,453 . 40,241 {10,944}
Decrease {Increase} in Prepald Expenses - -- - - .
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 176,870 40,703 3,222 220,795 9,772
Increase (Decrease) in Payroll Deductions - -- - - .
Increase {Decrease) in Accrued Wages Payable 24,874 9,233 - 34,107 -
Increase {Decrease) In Interfund Payables - - 17,740 17,740 -
Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits 98,107 - - 98,107 --
Increasa (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses {15,792} - 437 {15,355) {518)
Increase {Decrease} in Unearned Revenue - -- - -- -
Total Adjustments 1,040,162 106,032 73,692 1,219,886 {1,690)
Nei Cash Provided {Used} by Operating Activities 3 3,218,883 § 650,601 {109,183}% 3,760,301 § (36,060)
Surnmary of cash and cash equivalenis:
Cash and cash equivalents - operating 8 2,242,360 % 958,161 § 250,210 $ 3,450,731 § 4,127
Cash and cash equivalenis - restricted 5,063,842 2,523,965 -- 7,587,807 -
$ 7,306,202 $ 3,482,126 $ 256,210 % 11,038,538 $ 4,127

The accompanying noles are an irtegral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The combined financial statements of Cily of Rockport, Texas (the "Gity") have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles applicable to governmental units which are generally accepted in the Uniled States of
America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board ('GASB") is the accepted standard seting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

1.

Reporting Entity

The City's basic financial statemenis include the accounts of all its operations. The City evaluated whether any
other entily should be included in these financial statements. The criteria lor including organizations as
component units within the Cily's reporling enlity, as set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, "The Financlal
Reporting Entity,” include whether:

- the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in its name}

- the City holds the corporate powers of the organization

- the City appoints a voting majority of the organfzation's board

- the City is able to impose its wili on the organization

- the organization has the polential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the City

- there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the City

- the exclusion of the organization would result in misleading or incomplete financial statements

The City also evaluatod each legally separate, tax-exempt organization whose resources are used principally to
provide support to the City to delermine if its omission from the reporling entity would resull in financial
stalemenis which are misieading or incomplete. GASB Statement No. 14 requires inclusion of such an
organization as a component unit when: 1) The economic resources received or held by the organization are
entirely or almost entirely for the direct benelfit of the Cily, its component unils or its constiluents; and 2) The City
or its component units is enlitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majorlly of the economic resources
receivad or heid by the organization; and 3} Such economic resources are significant to the City.

Based on these crilerla, the City has no component units. Additionally, the Cily is nol a component unit of any
other reporting entity as defined by the GASB Statement.

Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounling
a. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statemenis: The statement of net assels and the stalement of activities include the
financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations been made 1o minimize the double-counting
of internal activities. These slatements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities
of the Cily. Governmental activilies generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
and other nonexchange lransactions. Business-type aclivities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.

The statement of aclivities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the
different business-type acftivities of the Cily and for each function of the City's governmental activities.
Direcl expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are
clearly identifiable to a partfcular funclion. The City does not allocate indirect expenses in the slatement
of activilies. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the reciplents of goods or
services offered by the programs and (b) granis and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operalional or capital requirements of a particufar program. Revenues that are not classilled as program
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues,
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financlal statements provide information about the City's funds,
with separate statements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial statements is
on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reporled as nonmaijor funds.

Proprietary fund operaling revenues, such as charges for services, resull from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activily of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each parly receives
and gives up esseniially equal values. Nonoperaling revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings,
result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. This is the City's primary operaiing fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
City except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Debt Service Fund. This fund is used to account for resources accumulated to make principal and interest
payments on outstanding bonds.

2007 Certificate of Obligation Fund. This fund is used to account for the proceeds and related expenditures
of the 2007 Certificate of Obligation issue.

The Cily repoiis the following major enterprise funds:

Water & Sewer Fund. This fund is used to account for the activities of providing water and sewer services
to the citizens of the City.

Natural Gas Fund. This fund is used fo account for the activities of providing naiural gas to the citizens of
the City.

In addition, the Cily reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for revenues and expenses related 1o sarvices provided
to parties inside the Cily. These funds facilifate distribution of support costs to the users of support
services on a cost-reimbursement basis. Because the principal users of the internal services are the
City's governmenial activitles, this fund type Is included in the "Governmental Activities” column of the
government-wide financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Stalements: These financial statements are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take
place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving {(or
giving} equal value in exchange, include properly taxes, grants, entittemenis, and donations. On an
accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from grants, entitements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmenial funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when measurable and avaitable. The City considers all revenues reported in the
governmental funds to be avallable if the revenues are collected within sixly days after year-end.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Revenues from local sources consist primarily of properly laxes. Properly tax revenues and revenues
received from the Slale are recognized under the susceptible-to-accrual concept. Miscellaneous revenues
are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally nol measurable until actually
received. invesiment earnings are recorded as earned, since they are both measurable and available.

Expenditures are recorded when the relaled fund liability is incurred, except for principal and Interest on
general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensaled absences, which are recognized as
expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisiions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capilal

leases are reported as other financing sources.

When the City incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and unrestricled resources may
be used, it is the City's policy to use restricled resources first, then unrestricted resources.

Under GASB Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial Reporling for Proprietary Funds and OCther
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting," all proprietary funds will continue to
follow Financial Accounting Standards Board {"FASB"} standards issued on or before November 30, 1989.
However, from that date forward, proprietary funds will have ihe option of either 1) choosing not lo apply
future FASB standards (including amendmenis of earlier pronouncements), or 2) confinuing to follow new
FASB pronouncements unless they conflict with GASB guidance. The Cily has chosen not o apply future

FASB standards.

3. Financlal Statement Amounts

a.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statoment of cash flows, highly liquid Investments are considered to be cash
equivalents if they have a maturily of three months or less when purchased.

Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real
and business personal property In conformity with Subtille E, Texas Property Tax Code. Taxes are due on
receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 1 of the year following the vear In
which imposed. On January 1 of each year, a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of afl
taxes, penallies, and Iinlerest ultimately Imposed. Property tax revenues are considered avaitable
(1) when they become due or past due and recelvable within the current period.

Alfowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the General and Debt Service Funds are based upon
historical experience in collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal property {axes are periodically
reviewed and written off, but the City is prohibited from wriling off real propery taxes without specific

statutory authority from the Texas Legislature.
Inventories and Prepaid llems

The City records purchases of supplies as expenditures, ulilizing the purchase method of
accounting for inveniory.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items.

Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimaied historical cost. Donaled lixed assets
are recorded al thelr estimated fair value ai the dale of the donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assels' lives are not capitalized. A capltalization

threshold of $5,000 is used.

30




CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Capital assels are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated

Asset Class Useful Lives
Infrastructure 50
Buildings 20-40
improvements other than

Buildings 20
Machinery and Equipment 5-10

e. Receivable and Payable Balances

The City belleves that sufficient detall of receivable and payable balances is provided in the financial
statemants to avoid the obscuring of significant components by aggregation. Therefore, no disclosure is provided
which disaggregates those balances.

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one year of year end.

f Deferred Ouiflows and Inflows of Resources

In addition 1o assets, the stalemenis of financial position (the government-wide Statement of Net Position
and governmental funds balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outllows of
resources. This separate linancial statement element, deferred outfiows of resources, represents a
consumption of netl position and/or fund balance that applies to one or more future periods and so will
not be recognized as an oulflow of resources {expense/expenditure) unil then.

In addition to liabilities, the stalements of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to one or more future periods and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

g. Compensated Absences

On retirement or death of cerlain employees, the City pays any accrued sick leave and vacation leave in
a lump case payment to such employee or his/her estate.

h. Interfund Activity

Interfund activity resulls from loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds. Loans are
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriaie and are subject 1o elimination upon consolidaion.

Services provided, deemed to be at markel or near market rates, are trealed as revenues and expenditures or

expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cosl, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and

reduces its retated cost as a reimbursement. All other inferfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers In

and Transfers Out are nefted and presented as a single "Transfers® line on the government-wide statement of I

activilies. Simifariy, interfund receivables and payabfes are nelted and presented as a single "Internal Balances” [

H

[

|

line of the government-wide statement of net assets.

i, Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - represents amounts that cannol be spent because they are either not in
spendable form (such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally required to remain intact {such as notes
receivable or principal of a permanent fund).
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Restricled Fund Balance - represents amounis that are consirained by external pariies, constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Commiited Fund Balance - amounts constrained to specific pumosess by a government itself, using
formal action by the Cily’s City Gouncil. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpese unless
the City Council removes those constraints by iaking the same type of formal action. Commilted fund
balance amounts may be used for other purposes with appropriate due process by ihe City Council.
Commitments are typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget  Commilled iund
balance amounis differ from restricted balances in that the constraints on their use do not come from
outside parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation. Only the most binding constraint should
be considered a commitment for fund balance classification purposes.

Assigned Fund Balance - represents amounis which the Cily intends fo use for a specific purpose, but that
do not meet the criteria to be classilied as restricted or commilted. Intent may be stipulaled by the City
Council or by an offical or body to which the governing body defigates its authority.  The City Council
has not deligated such authorlly to any official or other body.

Unassigned Fund Balance - represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be spent for
any purpose. Only the general fund reporis a positive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental
funds might report a negalive balance In fhis classification because of overspending for specific purposes
for which amounts had been restricted, committed or assigned. '

When an. expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted fund bafance is
available, the City considers rastricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for
which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the City considers amounis to
have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds.

The preparation of financiat statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of management's estimates.

4. Budgetary Data

The following procedures are followed in eslablishing the budgetary data reflected in the basic financial
statements:

a. Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, the City Manager presenis to the City Council a budget for the
next succeeding fiscal year. The operating budget Iincludes proposed expendilures and the means of
financing them. The City Council may make adjustments to the budget.

b. A meeting of the Cily Councll is then called for the purpose of adopting the proposed budgel. At least 1en
days' public notice of the meeting must have been given.

c. Prior to the slart of the fiscal year, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance by the
City Council.

Once a budget is approved, it can be amended only by approval of a majority of the members of the City
Council. As required by law, such amendments are made before the facl, are reftected In the officlal minutes of
the Cily Council and are not made after fiscal year end. During the year, the budget was amended as necessary. i
The budget is adopted at the lfevel of total revenues and expenditures by fund. All budget approprialions lapse :
at year end. Line item admendments must by made by the Gity Council.

The following funds have legally adopled budgeis: General Fund, Ulility Surcharge Fund, Hotel/Motel
Occupancy Tax Fund, Municipal Courl Security & Technology Fund, City/County Dispatch Fund and  Debt

Service Fund.

|
|

The City prepares all budgets on a "GAAP" basis.
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B.

5.  Encumbrance Accounting

Encuimbrance accounting is not used by the City.
Gompliange and Accountability
1. Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions

In accordance with GASB Slatemen! No. 38, “Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures," violations of finance-
refated legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reporied below, along with actions taken lo address such violations:

Violation Aclion Taken
None reported Not applicable

2. Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Nel Assets of Individual Funds

Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund net assets at year end, if any, afong with remarks which address
such deficits:

Deficit
Fund Name Amount BRemarks
City County Dispatch $ 11,268 Temporary shortage.
Bay Education Center 773  Temporary shortage.
Stonegarden Grant 64,010 Temporary shortage.

All deficits will be replenished by General Fund,

3. Budgets

The City over expended budgeted amounts in the following funds:

Utility Bill Surcharge $ 5,565
City County Dispatch 57,403
Hotel Motel Occupancy Tax 47,444
Municipal Counrt Security and Tech 7.454
Deabt Service Fund 96,265

The overages in the Utility Bl Surcharge, Hotel Motel Occupancy and Municipal Court Security and Tech
Funds were caused by unanticipated revenues which tied to expenditures in each fund.

These over expenditures in the Deb! Service Fund were bond issuance cosls and were as a result of a bond
refinancing that were not anticipated during the budgetary process.

B] i In

The City's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract. The depository
bank deposits for safekeeping and trust with the City's agent bank approved pledged securities in an amount sufficient
to protect Cily funds on a day-to-day basis during the perlod of the contract. The pledge of approved securities is
waived only to the extent of the depository bank's dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Gorporation (“*FDIC")

insurance.
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At Sepiember 30, 2014, the carrying amount of the Cily's deposits {cash, certificales’ of deposit, and inferest-bearing
savings accounts) included in temporary investmenis was $22,957,630 and the bank balance was $22,957,630. The
tolal deposils were covered by Federal Depository Insurance (FDIC) or by collateral held in the City’s agent bank in the
City's name.

investments:

The City Is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Investment Act, to adopt, implement, and
publicize an invesiment policy. That policy must be written; primarily emphasize safety of principal and liquidity;
address investment diversification, yield, and malurily and the qualily and capability of Investment management; and
Include a list of the types of authorized invesiments in which the investing entily's funds may be invesied; and the
maximum allowable stated maturity of any Individual investment owned by the entity.

The Public Funds Investment Act ("Act”) requires an annuval audit of investment praclices. Audit procedures in this
area conducted as a part of the audit of the general purpose financial statements disclosed that in the areas of
invesimen! praclices, management reporis and establishment of appropriate policies, the City adhered to the
requirements of the Act. Additionally, investment practices of the Gity were in accordance with local policies.

The Act delermines the lypes of investments which are allowable for the Cily. These include, with certain restrictions,
{1} obligations of the U.8. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the State of Texas, (2) certificates of deposit, {3)
certain municipal securities, (4) money market savings accounts, {5} repurchase agreemenis, (6) bankers acceptances,
(7} mutual funds, (8) investment pools, {8) guaranteed investment contracis, and {10) common trust funds.

The Gily's investment at September 30, 2014 are shown below.

Carrying
Investment or Investment Type Maturity Value Eair Value
TexPool N/A $ 7544 § 7,544
Texas Term Daily N/A 34,585 34,685
Ceriificates of Deposit 2 yoars 1,965,000 1,965,000
Total Invesiments $ 2,007,129 $ 2,007,129

The Certificates of Deposit are included in cash deposits listed above.

a. Credit Risk

Credit risk Is the risk that an Issuer or other counterparly to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. The ratings of
securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed fo give an indication of credit risk. At year end, the
City was not signilicantly exposed to credit risk.

At September 30, 2014, the Cily's investments, other than those which are obligations of or guaranteed by the U.
8. Government, are rated as 1o credit quality as follows:

Investment Rating Rating Agency
TexPool AAAmM Standard and Poor's
Texas Term AAAS Standard and Poor's

b.  Custodial Credit Risk
Deposits are exposed o custodial credit risk if they are not covered by deposilory insurance and the deposits are

uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial inslitution, or collateralized with securities
held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not In the City's name.
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Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are nol registered in the name of
the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the

Cily's name.
At year end, the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

¢. Concentration of Credit Risk

This risk is the risk of loss altributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single issuer. At year end, the
City was not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

d. Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the falr value of an invesiment. At year end, the
City was not exposed to interest rate risk.

e. Foreign Currency Risk

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the City was
not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Investment Accounting Policy

The City's general policy Is to report money markel investments and short-term participating interest-earning
investment conlracts al amorlized cost and to repor nonparlicipaling interest-earning invesiment conlracis using a
cost-based measure. However, if the fair value of an investment is significantly affected by the impairment of the
credit standing of the issuer or by other factors, it is reported at fair value. All other investments are reported at fair
vajue unless a legal contract exisis which guarantees a higher valve. The term "shorf-term” refers o investments
which have a remaining term of one year or less al time of purchase. The ierm "nonparticipating” means that the
invesiment's value does not vary with market interest rale changes. Nonnegotiable certificates of deposit are examples
of nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts.

Public Funds Investment Pools
Public funds Investment pools in Texas ("Pools") are eslablished under the authority of the Interlocal Cooperation Act,

Chapter 79 of the Texas Government Code, and are subject to the provisions of the Public Funds Investment Act (the "Act”),
Chapler 2256 of the Texas Government Code. In addition 1o other provisions of the Act designed to promole liquidily and
safety of principal, the Act requires Pools to: 1) have an advisory board composed of participants in the pool and olher
persens who do not have a business relationship with the pool and are qualified to advise the pool; 2) maintain a continuous
rating of no lower than AAA or AAA-m or an equivalent rafing by at least one naticnally recognized rating service; and 3)
maintain the market value of ils underlying investment portfolio within one half of one percent of the value of its shares.

The Cily's investments in Pools are reported at an amount determined by the fair value per share of the pools
underlying portfolio, unless the pool is 2a7-iike, in which case they are reported at share value. A 2a7-like pool Is one
which is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") as an investment company, but
nevertheless has a policy that it will, and does, operate in a manner consistent with the SEC's Rule 2a7 of the

Investment Company Act of 1940.

|
f
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D.

Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2014, was as follows:
Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Governmental activilies:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 4,902,767 $ -- $ - $ 4,902,767
Construction in progress 120,877 - 120,877
Total capital assels not being deprecialed 5,023,644 -- 5,023,644
Capital asssts being depreciated:
Infrastructure 12,972,056 2,051,777 - 15,023,833
Buildings and improvements 4,842 944 -- 4,842,944
Improvements other than buildings 1,884,604 - 1,884,604
Machinery and Equipment 3,664,282 290,582 51,244 3,903,620
Tolal capilal assels being depreciated 23,363,886 2,342,359 51,244 25,655,001
Less accumulated depresciation for:
Infrastructure (1,237,083} (273,629} - (1,610,712)
Buildings and improvements (1,197,684) {125,332) (1,323,0186)
Improvements other than buildings {440,710) {85,645) - {526,355)
Machinery and Equipment {2,214,001) {295,921} {61,244} (2,458,678}
Total accumulated depreciation {5,089,478) {780,527) {51,244) (5,818,761}
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 18,274,408 1,561,832 - 19,836,240
Governmental aclivities capital assels, net $ 23,298,052 $ 1,561,832 § - $ 24,859,884
Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 214,954 § $ - $ 214,954
Construction in progress -- 1,095,682 1,095,682
Total capilal assets not being depreciated 214,954 1,095,682 - 1,310,636
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 4,182,187 45,751 -- 4,237,938
Improvements other than buildings 1,944,240 - - 1,844,240
Utility System 43,990,074 195,622 - 44,185,696
Machinery and Equipment 2,100,098 105,300 - 2,205,398
Total capital assets being depreciated 52,226,599 346,673 - 52,573,272
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements {360,467} {107,281} - (467,748)
Improvements other than buildings {776,112) {64,308) - {840,420)
Uiility System {15,747,802) (788,489) -- (16,536,291}
Machinery and Equipment (1,855,622) {65,996) - {1,921,618)
Total accumulated deprecialion (18,740,003 (1,026,074} - (19,766,077}
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 33,486,596 {679,401) - 32,807,196
Business-fype activilies capilal assets, net $ 33,701,550 $ 416,281 § - $ 34,117,831
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E.

Depreclation was charged to functions as follows:

vit

General Government $ 37,268
Public Safety 231,181
Public Works 363,664
Culture and Recreation 146,669
S 778762
Business-iype aclivilies:
Water and Sewer System $ 897,034
Natural Gas Syslem 62,974
Gommunity Aquatic Center 66,066
$__ 1,026,074
Capital | eases
Included in the governmental aclivities capital asseis listed above are the following capitalized leased assets:
Buildings $ 1,607,000
Less accumulated amoriization {401,750}
Capitalized leases, net $ 1,205,250

Interfund Balances and Activity
1. Due To and From Other Funds

Balances due to and due from other funds at September 30, 2014, consisted of the following:

Due To Fund Due From Fund Amount Purpose

General Fund Other Governmenial Funds $ 420,674 Short-term loans

General Fund Other Enterprise Fund 356 Short-term loans
Total $ 421,030

All amounts due are scheduled to be repald within one year.
2. Transfers To and From Other Funds

Transfers 10 and from other funds at September 30, 2014, consisted of the following:

Transfers In

General Nonmajor Nonmajor Water &

Transfers Qut Total Fund Governmential Proprietary Sewer
Nalural Gas Fund $ 164,604 $ $ - $ $ 164,694
Water and Sewer Fund 966,132 937,083
General Fund 751,430 584,743 132,255
Debt Service Fund -
Nonmajor Governmental 43,012
Internal Service Fund 2,500 2,500

3 1,927,768 $ 937,093 % 587,243 % 132,255 % 164,694
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The General Fund received funds from the Water & Sower and Naiural Gas Funds to cover allocated amounts of

adminisirative charges.
Other transfers were made to supplement other funds operations.
-Ter ivi
The City had no shori-term debt activity for the year ended September 30, 2014,

Beslrdcted Assels

Cash and cash equlvalents were restricted for the following purposes at September 30, 2014:

Governmental  Business-lype
Activities Activilies
Bond Construction Funds $ 8,134,648 $ 1,440,455
Debt Service -- 183,891
$ 8,134,648 $ 1,624,446
Long- Cbligation

The City has entered into a continuing disclosure undertaking to provide Annual Reports and Material Event Notices
to the Slate Information Depository of Texas, which is the Municipal Advisory Council, This information Is required under
SEC Rule 15¢2-12 to enable investors to analyze the financial condition and operations of the City.

Long-term debt consisted of the following at September 30, 2014:

General Long- Enterprise
interest Rate Term Debt Fund Debt
Combination Tax and Revenue Gertificates of
Obligation, Serigs 2005 4.00-4.50% 271,472 198,528
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of
Obligation, Series 2007 4.25-5,25% 7,696,832 1,583,062
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 3.00-4.00% 858,186 611,814
Combination Tax and Revenue Cerfificates of
Obligation, Series 2009 3.00-4.50% 8,725,000
General Refunding Bonds, Series 2010 2.00-4.00% 1,054,184 1,050,816
General Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 1.00-3.00% 3,893,024 2,846,976
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 2.00-4.25% 4,408,793 906,739
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of
Obligation, Series 2014 2.00-3.00% -- 3,610,000
Total Bonded Debt 18,182,491 19,632,935
Unamortized bond premium 985,650 692,734
962,000 -

Capital leases payable
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OPER obligation payable 1,598,027 -

Pension obligation payable 260,240

Compensated absences 346,024 123,438
Total Long-Term Debt $ 22334432 $ 20,349,107

1. Long-Term Obligation Activity

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended
September 30, 2014, are as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year

Governmentai activitles:
Certificates of obligation $ 13,063,805 $ -- $ 5,095,501 § 7,968,304 769,119
General obligation bonds 6,233,414 4,503,642 522,869 10,214,187 444,704
Bond premium 519,654 563,678 97,682 985,650 48,900
Capital leases 1,037,000 -- 75,000 962,000 78,000
Pension obligation 260,240 . = 260,240 -
OPEB obligation 1,436,824 377,393 216,190 1,598,027 388,715
Compensated absences * 344,386 155,520 153,882 346,024 140,000
Total governmential activites $  22,895323 § 5,600,233 $ 6,161,124 § 22334432 § 1,869,438
Business-type activities:
Certificates of obligation § 12531195 § 3,610,000 $ 1,184,605 $ 14,956,590 420,881
General obligation bonds 4,436,586 906,739 766,980 4,576,345 795,296
Bond premium 348,109 393,128 48,503 692,734 49,000
Compensated absences * 87,878 127,680 82,120 123,438 20,000
Total business-type activities  $ 17,403,768 $ 5,037,547 $ 2002208 8 20,348,107 % 1,885,177

* Other fong-term fiabllities
The funds typically used fo liquidate other long-term Ifabilities in the past are as follows:

Liability Activity Type Fund
Compensated absences Governmental  General Fund
Claims and judgments Governmental  General Fund

Water and Sewer Fund
Water and Sewer Fund
General Fund
General Fund

Business-type
Business-lype
Governmenial
Governmental

Compensated absences
Claims and judgmenis
Pension Obligation
OPEB

2. Debt Service Requirements
Debt service requirements on long-term debt at September 30, 2014, are as follows:

Governmental Activities j

r Endin mber Principal Interest Total i
2015 $ 1,213,823 $ 524,223 $ 1,738,046 |
2016 1,412,611 477,324 1,889,935 i
2017 1,386,931 427,624 1,814,555 j
2018 1,389,579 376,345 1,765,924
2019 1,388,064 323,283 1,711,347
2020-2024 6,997,651 752,720 7,750,371 ?
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2024-2027 4,393,832 63,232 4,457,064
Totals $ 18,182,481 $ 2,044,751 §_ 21,127,242

Business-type Aclivities

Year Ending Septeniber 30, Principal Interest Total

20156 $ 1,216,177 $ 769,727 $ 1,985,804
2016 1,267,389 724,619 1,992,008
2017 1,258,069 684,856 1,942,925
2018 1,265,421 641,779 1,907,200
2019 1,266,936 598,006 1,864,942
2020-2024 6,287,739 2,285,918 8,673,657
2025-2029 5,781,204 871,666 6,662,870
202¢9 1,180,000 129,203 1,309,203
Totals $ 19,532,935 § 6,705,774 $ 26,238,709

3. Advance Refunding of Debt

In July 2014, the City Issued $5,430,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds to defease $5,225,000 of
Combination Tax and Revenue C,0.'s Series 2007. $4,358,497 of the refunded debt was serviced by the Debt
Service Fund and $896,503 was debt of the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund.

The proceeds from the refunding bonds have been deposited in Irrevocable frusts which, logether with interest
earnings on those deposits, will provide amounts sufficient for future redemption or payment of principal and
interest of the issues refunded. The trust account assefs and the ligbilities for the defeased bonds are not
included in the Cily's financial statements. At Seplember 30, 2014, $5255,000 of bonds ouistanding

were considered defeased.

The present value of the debi savings was $496,720, $411,979 was altributable to Governmental Activities and
$84,740 to the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund.

4  Caphal Leases

Commitments under capitalized lease agreements for facilities and equipment provide for minimur fulure lease payments
as of September 30, 2014, as follows:

Year Ending September 30,

2015 $ 120,182
2018 120,811

2017 120,414
2018 120,661

2019 120,680
2020-2024 603,629
Total Minimum Rentals 1,206,477

Less amount representing interest {244,477)
Present value of minimum lease payments % 962,000
Rental Expenditues in 2014 $ 120,222

The effective interest rale on capital leases is 4.39%.
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. Fund Balances

Fund balances consisted of the following at September 30, 2014:

Nonspendable:
General Fund - inventories $ 58,047
Restricted:
Debt Service Fund - retirement of debt 528,104
2007 Certificate of obfigation fund - construction 4,429,065
Utility bill surcharge tund - fire protection 68,821
Contribution fund - specified by donor 2,080
Public Access TV - public access tv 119,092
Hotel/Motel Occupancy - tourism 714,839
Key Allegro PID - debt 232
Forfieture fund - law enforecement 28,494
Municipat Court fund - security and technology 91,761
Bay Education Center Construction - construction 20,557
2005 Certificate of Oblicatlon fund - construction 2,491,468
Total Restricted 8,495,513
Committed:
Border Star Grant - law enforcement 10,388
Flamingo/Luau Assessment - construction 1,752
Total Commilted 12,140
Assigned:
General Capital improvement fund - capital outlay 178,100
Vehicle and Equipment Replacement - capital outlay 250,554
Totat Assigned 428,654
Unassigned:
General fund 3,011,065
Stonegarden grant (64,010)
Bay Education center {773)
City/county dispatch {11,268}
Totat Unassigned 2,835,014
Totat Fund Balances $ 11,929,368

J.  Commitments Under Noncapitalized Leases

The City had ne malerial commitments under operating {noncapitalized) lease agreements at September 30, 2014,

K. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related lo torts, thefl, damage or destruction of assets, errors and omisslons,
injuries to employees, and natural disasters. During fiscal year 2014, the City oblained general liability coverage at a
cost that is considered to be economically justifiable by joining together with other governmental entities in the Slate
as a member of the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool ("TML"}. TML is a self-funded pool
operaling as a common risk management and insurance program. The City pays an annual premium fo TML for iis
above insurance coverage. The agreement for the formation of TML provides thal TML will be self-sustaining through
member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of acceptable risk levels;
however, each category of coverage has its own level of reinsurance. The Cily continues to carry commercial
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insurance for other risks of loss. There were no significant reductions in commercial insurance coverage in the pasi
fiscal year and seitled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal

years.

L.  Pension Plan

1.

Plan Descriplion

The Cily's pension plan {"Plan"} is a non-raditional, joint confributory, defined benefit plan which provides
retirement, disability and death benefils to Plan members and beneficiaries through its afffliation with Texas
Municipal Retirement Sysiem ("TMRS"), an agent multiple-employer public employse retiremant system.
TMRS operates under the authority of Texas Government Code, Tille 8, Subtitle G. The Texas legislature has
the authority to establish or amend benefit provisions and the governing body of the City adopis the plan
provisions within the options and constraints established by the legislature. TMRS lissues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial siatemenis and required supplementary Information for TMRS. That
report may be obtained by wiiting to Texas Municipal Refirement System, P.O. Box 149153, Austin, TX
78714-9153 or calling (800) 924-8677. Additional nonauthoritative information is available at the TMRS web

site, hiip/fwww.imrs.org.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the options available in the state governing
TMRS. Plan provisions for the City were as follows:

Plan Year Plan Year
2012 2013

Employee deposit rate 7.00% 7.00%
Matching ratio{city to employee) 2101 2lo1
Years required for vesting 10 10
Service retirement eligibility
express as agefyears of service 80/10,0/20 60/10,0/20
Updated Service Cradit 100% Repeating 100% Repeating

Transfers Transfers
Annuity [ncrease (lo employees) 70% of CPi Repealing 70% of CPi Repealing

Contributions

Under the state Jaw governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary,

using the Projected Unit Credit acluarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate
and the prior service cost contribution rate, which is calculaied to be a tevel percent of payroll from year to year,
The normal cost contribution rate finances the portion of an active member's projected benefit allocated
annually; the prior service conlribution rate amorntizes the unfunded {overiunded) actuarial fiability {asset} over the
applicable period for that city. Both the normal costs and prior service coniribullon rates include recognition
of the projected impact of annually repeating benefits, such as Updated Service Credits and Annuily Increases.

The Cily contributes to the TMBS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and the Gily
make conlributions monthly. Since the Cily needs to know its confribulion rate in advance for budgetary
purposes, there is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation thal serves as the basis for the rale and the
calendar year when the rate goes into effect. The annual pension cost and net pension obligation{asset) are as

follows:
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Annual Pension Cost:

Annual required contribution (ARC}) $ 758,836
Interest on Net Pension Obligation 22,765
Adjustment to ARC (22,765)
Annual Pension Cost 758,836
Contributions Made {758,836}
Increase in net pension -

NPO at beginning of year 260,240
NPQ at End of Year $ 260,240

The required contribution rates for fiscal year 2014 were delermined as patl of the December 31, 2012

actuarial valuations. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation, December 31, 2013, also follows:

Acutuarial Valualion Date 12/31/11 12/3112 12/31/13
Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit  Projected Unit  Projected Unit
Credit Credit Credit
Amortization Method Level Percent Level Percent  Level Percent
of Payroll of Payroll of Payroll
Remaining Amortization Perlod 26.4 years: 25.4 years: 26 years:

Amortization Period for new

closed period

closed period

closed period

Gains/Losses 30 years 30 years 30 years
Asset Vafuation Method 10-year i0-year 10-year
Smoothed Smoothed Smoothed
Market Market Market
Investment Rate of Return 7.0% 7.0% 7.0%
Projected Salary Increases Variesbyage Variesbyage  Varies by age
and service and service and service
Inflation Rate 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
2.1% 2.1% 2.1%

Cost of Living Adjustments

Funding Status and Funding Progress:

The funding status as of December 31, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, is as follows:

Actuarial Valuation Date

Actuarial Value of Assets
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Actuarial Accrued Liability $ 23,420,794
Percentage Funded 85.4%
Unfunded (Over-funded) Actuariat Accrued
Liability {UAAL) 3 3,416,665
Annual Covered Payrolt $ 4,369,466
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 78.2%
Trend Information for the Plan;
Fiscal Annual Percentage et
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost {APC) Contributed Obligation
09/30/11 $ 719,061 95.50% $ 254,411
09/30/12 679,157 99.43% 260,240
09/30/13 758,836 100.00% 260,240
Schedule of Funding Progress:
UAALasa
Actuarial  Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Annual Percentage
Value Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assels Liability(AAL) (UAAL} Ratio Payrolt Payroll
12131111 16,183,038 § 19,865,789 $ 3,682,751 81.46% $ 4,476,201 82.3%
i2/3thz2 17,585,134 21,103,497 3,518,363 83.33% 4,654,360 75.6%
12/3143 20,004,129 23,420,794 3,416,665 85.41% 4,369,466 78.2%

The City also participates in the cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit group-term life insurance plan
operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System {TMRS)} known as the Supplemental Death Benefits Fund

(SDBF).
retired employess.

The Cilty may lerminate coverage

adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any year to be effective the following January 1.

The City elected, by ordinance lo provide group-term life insurance coverage {o bolh current and
under and disconlinue participation in the SDBF by

The death benefit for active members provides a lump-sum payment approximaiely equal to the employee’s annual
salary (calcutated based on the employee's actual earnings, for the 12-month pericd preceding the month of death);

retired employses are Insured for $7,500; this coverage Is an "other postemployment benefit " or OPEB.

M. Health Care Coverage

During the year ended September 30, 2014, employees of the City were covered by a health insurance plan (the

Plan). The City paid premiums of $413 per month per employee and dependents to the Plan.
option, authorized payroll withholdings 1o pay premiums for dependents.

Employees, at their
All premiums were paid to a third party

administrator, acting on behalf of the licensed insurer. The Plan was authorized by Article 3.51-2, Texas Insurance

Code and was documented by conlractual agreement.

The contract between the Cily and the third party administrator is renewable October 1, 2013, and terms of coverage
and premium costs are included in the coniractual provisions.

N. Post Employment Benetits Qther Than Pensions

Health Care Benefit Eligibility Conditions:

Before 4/24/2001 - Retirement from City, employee eligible for health insurance, City pays 100% of premium,
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After 4/24/2001 - Retirement with ten years of service wilh the City of Rockport a reliree is eligible for 50% of the
premiuim. The percentage of premium paid increases annually and at iwenty years of service eligible for 100% of
premium. If retiring after April 24, 2001, they must enroll for this coverage within thirty days of retirement.

Al age 65 must apply for Medicare and Cily furnishes a Medicare Supplementat Policy

Health Care Benefit Provided by the Plan
Member; Medical
Spouse: N/A
Dependen  N/A

Early Belirement Benefils
Health Care Benefit Eligibilily Conditions
Before 4/24/2001: Retirement from City, employee efigible for health insurance, Cily pays 100% of premium.

After 4/24/2001: Retirement with ten year of service wilh the City of Rockpor eligible for 50% of premium. The
percentage of premium pald increases annually and al iwenly years of service eligible for 100% of premium. U
retiring after April 24, 2001, they must enroll for this coverage within thily days of their retirement. At age 65 must
apply for Medicare and City furnishes a Medicare Supplemental Poficy.

Benelit Provi Pl
Member: Medical
Spouse: N/A
Dependen  N/A

{ Benefi
None.
None.

Duty Disabled Retiremeanl Benefits

Health Care Beneiit Eligibility Conditions

Before 4/24/2001: Retirement from City employee eligible for health insurance, City pays 100% of premium.

After 4/24/2001: Retirement with ten year of service with the Cily of Rockport eligible for 50% of premium. The
percentage of premium paid increases annually and ai twenly years of service eligible for 100% of premium. If
reliring after April 24, 2001, they musl enroll for this coverage within thirly days of their retirement. At age 65, the
reliree must apply for Medicare and City furnishes a Medicare Supplemental Policy.

Health Care Benefit Provided by Plan
Member:  Medical

Non-Duty Disabled Retiramenl Benefits
Health Care Benefit Eligibility Conditions

Belore 4/24/2001: Retirement from City employee eligible for health insurance, City pays 100% of premium,
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After 4/24/2001: Retirement with ten year of service with the Cily of Rockport eligible for 50% of premium. The
percentage of premium paid increases annually and at twenty years of service refirees are eligible for 100% of
premium. It reliring after Aprit 24, 2001, they must enroll for this coverage within thirly days. At age 85 must apply
for Medicare and City furnishes a Medicare Supplementat Policy.

Health Care Benefit Provided by Plan
Member: Medical

Benefi 8 Retired Empl
Benefits are paid by the retiree

Non-Medicare and Medicare-Eligible Provisions

At age 65 must apply for Medicare and City furnishes a Medicare Supplemental Policy.

Vision Coverage

Benefits are paid by retiree

Dental Coverage

Benefits are paid by retiree

Li r I

The City of Rockport provides $2,000 basic life insurance for retirees.
No dependent life is covered by the City of Rockport.

Retiree Opt-Out

N/A

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost

The City's annual other post employment benefits (OPEB} cost is calculated based on the annual required
contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount acluarially determined in accordance with the parameter of GASB
Statement No. 45. The ARG represents a level of accrual that is projected to recognize the normal cost each year
and to amoriize any unfunded actuarial liabilities {(or funding excess) over a period not o exceed thidy years. The
City had its OPEB acluarial valuation performed for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2011 as required by GASB
and is required to have additional valuations every three years. The annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2013 was determined as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 377,393
interest on OPEB obligalion 11,322
Adjustment to ARC N {11,322)
Annual OPEB cost (expense end of year) 377,393
Net employer contributions {pay as you go} {216,190}
Increase in net OPEB 161,203
Net OPEB obligation - as 09/30/13 1,436,824
Net OPEB obligation (asset)- as of 09/30/14 s 1,598,027
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The end of year net OPEB obligation is shown as a non-current liability on the Government-wide Statement
of Net Assets in the Governmental Governmental Activities.

The Cily's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contiibuled to the plan, and net OPEB obigation for the
current and fwo preceeding years were as follows:

Percentage
of OPEB Net
Year Ended Annual OPEB Cost OPEB
Seplember 30 Cosi Contributed Obligation
2012 $ 355,729 39.18% $ 1,239,418
2013 366,401 46.12% 1,436,824
2014 377,393 57.29% 1,598,027

Funding status and funding prograss

The funded stalus of the Cily's retiree health care plan, under GASB statement No. 45 as of December 31, 2011,
it's most recent actuarial valuation is as follows:

Actuariat acerued lability (AAL) $ 3,722,633
Actuarial value of assets -
Unfunded AAL{UAAL) $ 3,722,633

Funded ratio -
Covered Payroli $ 4,654,360
UAAL as % of covered payroll 79.98%

Under the reporting parameters, the City's retiree health care plan is 0% funded with an estimated aciuvarial
accrued liability exceeding actuarial assets by $3,722,633 at December 31, 2011,

Actuarial methods and assumptions

The Projected Unit credit aciuarial cost method is used to calculate the GASB ARC for the Cily's retiree health care
plan. Using the plan benefits, the present health premiums and a sel of actuarial assumptions, the anticipated future
payment are projected. The projecied unit credit method then provides for a systematic recognition of the cost of
these anticipated payments. The yearly ARC is computed to cover the cost of benefils being earned by covered
members as well as to amortize a portion of the unfunded accrued liability.

Projections of health benefits are based on the plan as understood by the City and include the types of bensiits in
force al the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the City and its employees to  that
point.  Actuarial caloulations reflect a longterm perspective and employ methods and assumplions
that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.

Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Measurement date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Amertization period
Inflation rate

Medical Inflation
Payroll Growth rate

December 31, 2011

Projected Unit Credit Cost Method
Level as a percentage of payroll
30 years, open

3.0% per annum

8.5% initial rate, 4.5% ultimate rate,
3% annually
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Actuarial valuations Involve estimates of the value of reporied amounts and assumptions about the probability of
evenis in the future. Amounts delermined regarding the funded stalus and the annual reguired coniributions of the
City's reliree health care plan are subject to continual revision as actual resulls are compared to past expectaions and
new ostimates are made about the future. The required schedule of funding progress presented as required
suplementary Information provides mulliyear trend information that shows whether the acluarial value of plan assels
is increasing or decreasing over time relalive to the actuarial accrued fability for benefits,

0. Commitments and Contingencies.
1. Coniingencies
The City parlicipates in grant programs which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor
agencies. Costs charged to the respeclive grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor
agencies; therefore, to the extent that the Cily has not complied with the rules and regufations governing the
grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the collectibility of any related receivable may be
impaired. In the opinion of the City, there are no significant contingent liabilites relating to compliance with
the rules and regulations governing the respeclive granis; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the
accompanyling basic financial statements for such contingencies.

2. Litigation
No reportable litigation was pending against the City at September 30,2014,
P. Even

No events occurred subsequent to September 30, 2014 that require disclosure in the financial staiements.
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ASSETS

Assels:
Cash and invesiments
Receivables { net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Other taxes
Accounts
Special assessments
intergovernmentat
Restricted assets:
Cash and investments
Total Assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenditures

Due to other funds
Total Liabilities

Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Unavailable speclal assessments
Unavailable taxes - Utility Surcharge

Total Deferred Qutilows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Qutiiows of
Resources

Fund balances:
Resdricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total Liabilities and Fund balances

EXHIBIT B-t

Totai
Nonmajor
Special Capital Governmental
Revenue Projecis Funds (See
Funds Funds Exhibit A-3)

994,546 3 712,356 $ 1,706,902
288,887 -- 288,887
16,756 48 16,804
735 6,473 7,208
115,086 - 115,086

-- 2,491,468 2,491,468
1,416,010 3,210,345 4,626,355
267,812 $ $ 267,812
10,818 - 10,818
159,233 261,441 420,674
437,863 261,441 699,304
735 6,473 7,208
16,756 - 16,756
17,491 6,473 23,964
455,354 267,914 723,268
1,026,319 2,512,025 3,538,344
10,388 1,752 12,140

-- 428,654 428,654
{76,051) - {76,051)
960,656 2,242,431 3,903,087
1,398,519 $ 3,203,872 5 4,602,391
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Total
Nonmajor
Special Capital Governmental
Revenue Projects Funds (See
Funds Funds Exhibit A-5)
Revenue:
Taxes $ 1,041,457 8§ - 1,041,457
Intergovernmenial 586,266 597,294 1,183,560
Fines 44,940 -- 44,940
Interest -- 6,423 6,423
Miscellaneous 6,633 - 6,633
Total revenues 1,679,296 603,717 2,283,013
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 27,637 21 27,558
Public safety 1,008,758 - 1,008,758
Culture and recreation 50,802 - 50,902
Tourism 640,589 -- 640,589
Capiial outlay 102,508 731,476 833,984
Deabt service:
Principal 31,694 31,694
Interest and fiscal charges 3,924 - 3.924
Total expendilures 1,865,912 731,497 2,587,409
Excess {deficiency} of revenues (under} expenditures (186,618) {127,780) (314,396)
Other tinancing sources (uses):
Transfers in 397,643 189,700 587,343
Transters out {43,012) - (43,012)
Total other financing sources {uses) 354,631 189,700 544,331
Net change in fund balance 168,015 61,920 229,935
Fund balance, beginning of year 792,641 2,880,511 3,673,152
Fund balance, end of year $ 960,656 $ 2,942,431 3,903,087
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS

Assets:
Cash and investments

Receivables { net of allowances for uncollectibles):

Olher taxes

Accounts

Special assessments

Intergovernmentat
Total Assels

Liabilitles:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenditures

Due to other funds
Total Liabllities

Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Unavailable special assessmenis
Unavailable taxes - Ulility Surcharge

Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources

Total Liabilittes and Deferred Qutflows of
Resources

Fund balances:
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total Liabilities and Fund balances

Utllity Bay Juvenile
Bilt Stonegarden Education Case
Surcharge Grant Center Manager
$ 197,813 - - $ -
16,756 -
-- 100,500 -- --
214,569 100,500 -- -
$ 128,992 5,277 773 0§
-- 158,233 - --
128,992 164,510 773 --
16,756 =
16,756 - -
145,748 164,510 773 -
68,821 - - -
- {64,010) (773) -
68,821 {64,010) (773) --
$ 197,813 100,500 - $ -
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Contribution
Fund

2,080

2,080

2,080

2,080

2,080

City/County
Dispatch
Service

14,5686
14,586

$ 15,036
10,818

25,854

25854

(11,268)
~ (i1,268)

$ 14,586

Public
Access
TV

119,092

T ii9,002

119,092

119,002

5___ 11000

52

HotelMiotel

Occupancy

$

525,152

288,887

814030

99,200

99,200

99,200

~ 714,839

$

714,83¢

. 814039

EXHIBIT B-3
Page 1 of 2

Key Allegro
Property Impr.
District

232

735

967

735

735

735

232

532

232
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Border
Star
Grant
ASSETS
Assels:
Cash and investments $ 10,388
Receivables { net of alfowances for uncollectibles):
Cther taxes -
Accounts
Speclal assessments -
intergovernmental -
Total Assels 10,388
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $
Accrued expenditures -
Due to other funds -
Total Liabilities
Deferred Ouiflows of Resources
Unavailable special assessments
Unavailable faxes - Ulility Surcharge .
Total Deferred Quifiows of Resources -
Totai Liabilities and Deferred Qutflows of
Resources --
Fund balances:
Restricted -
Committed 10,388
Unassigned
Total fund balances 10,388
Totai Liabilities and Fund balances 3 10,388
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Child
Safety

$ 2,142

2,142

$ 2,142

2,142

2,142

$ 2,142



__ Forfeiture

29,494

8

29,494

45,886

Municipal Court
Securily &
_ Tech. Fund _

$ 91,761

91,761

__ etmt

$ 91,761
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EXHIBIT B-3
Page 2 of 2

Total
Nonmajor
Special
Revenue
Funds (See
Exhibit B-1)

3 994,546

288,887

16,756

735
115086

1,418,010

$ 267,812
10,818

159,233

437,863

735
16,756
17,491

_ 455354

1,026,319
10,388
(76,051)
960,656

$ 1,328,619
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AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Uttility Bay Juvenile
Bill Stonegarden Education Case
Surcharge Grant Center Manager
Revenue:
Taxes $ 183,580 - -
Intergovernmenial - 306,934 - -
Fines -- -- 7,315
Miscellaneous -- -- 35 -
Total revenues 183,580 306,934 35 7,315
Expendifures:
Current:
General government - -- -- 18,883
Public safety 128,992 277,136 -- --
Culture and recreation -- -- 50,023 --
Tourlsm - - --
Capital oullay - 102,508 -- -
Debt service:
Principat 31,694 - -
Interest and fiscal charges 3,924 - . --
Total expenditures 164,610 379,644 50,023 18,883
Excess (deficiency) of revenues {under) expenditures 18,970 (72,710) {49,988) {11,568)
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers in - = 50,085 11,568
Transfers out - - -~ -
Total other financing sources (uses) -~ 50,085 11,568
Net change in fund balance 18,970 (72,710} 97 -
Fund balance, beginning of year 49,851 8,700 (870} -
Fund balance, end of year $ 68,821 {64,010 {773)
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EXHIBIT B-4

Page 1 of 2
City/County Public Key Allegro
Contribution Dispatch Access HoteliMotel Property Impr.
Fund Service TV Occupancy District

$ $ - $ 17,946 $ 839,931 $ -
279,332 -- -- -
2,679 3,469 -- 450 --
2,679 282,801 17,946 840,381 -
580,259 -- .. -
879 - - - -
- - - 640,589 --
879 590,259 -- 640,589 -
1,800 {307,458} 17,946 199,792 -
- 335,990 - - -
- - - (43,012} -
I 335,990 - {43,012) -
1,800 28,532 17,946 156,780 -

280 {39,800) 101,146 558,069 232

$ 2,080 $ {11,268} $ 119,092 % 714,839 $ 232
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Revenue:
Taxes
inlergovernmental
Fines
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expendifures:

Current:
General government
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Tourism

Capital outlay

Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues {under} expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change In fund balance

Fund batance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year
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$

Border
Star
Grant

10,388

10,388

Child
Safely

3.063

3,063

3,088

3,088

(25)

(25)

25




Foreiture

9,283

15,970

15,970

13,524

s 20494

Municipat Court
Security &

_ Tech.Fund

9,308

9,309

8,654

8,654

655

655

91,106

$ 91,761
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EXHIBIT B-4
Page 2 of 2

Total
Nonmajor
Special
Revenue
Funds (See

1,041,457
586,266
44,940
6,633

1,679,296

27,537
1,008,758
50,902
640,589
102,508

31,694
3.924

1,865,912

(186,616}

397,643
(43,012)
354,631

168,015

792,641
860,656



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
UTILITY BiLL SURCHARGE

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Revenue:
Taxes
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal chaiges
Total expendiiures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers out
Tolal other financing sources {uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT B-5

Variance with
(GAAP Basis) Final Budget
Budgeted Amounis Posilive
Original Final Aclual (Negative)
$ 167,480 § 167,490 $ 183,580 $ 16,090
167,490 167,490 183,580 16,090
123,525 123,525 128,992 {5,467)
30,661 30,661 31,694 {1,033}
4,859 4,859 3,924 935
159,045 169,045 164,610 (5,565)
8,445 8,445 18,970 10,525
(8,375) {8,375) -- 8,375
(8,375) (8,375} -- 8,375
70 70 18,870 18,900
48,851 49,851 49,851 --
$ 49921 % 49,921 % 68821 ¢ 18,200
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CITY/COUNTY DISPATCH SERVICE

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Revenue:
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public sately
Tolal expenditures

Excess {deficiency} of revenues (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Tolal other financing sources (uses)

Net change In fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement,

EXHIBIT B-6

Variance with

(GAAP Basis) Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
$ 253455 § 253,455 §$ 279,332 § 25,877
- - 3,469 3,469
253,455 253,455 282,801 29,346
532,856 532,856 590,259 (57,403)
532,866 532,856 590,259 (57,403}
{279,401) (279,401) (307,458} (28,057)
279,401 279,401 335,990 56,580
279,401 279,401 335,990 58,589
-- -- 28,532 28,632

(39,800} {39,800) {39,800) --

$ {39,800) $ {39,800} $ (11,268) $ 28,532
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
HOTEL/MOTEL OCGUPANCY TAX FUND
SPEGIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 80, 2014

Revenue:
Taxes
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Tourism
Tolal expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues (under} expenditures
Cther financing sources (uses):
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT B-7

Variance with
{GAAP Basis) Final Budget
Budgeted Amounis Positive
Criginal Final Actual {Negalive)
$ 665,000 § 665,000 § 839,931 § 174,931
- .- 450 450
665,000 665,000 840,381 175,381
593,145 593,145 640,589 (47,444)
593,145 593,145 640,589 (47,444)
71,855 71,855 199,792 127,837
{43,012) {43,012) (43,012) --
{43,012) {43,012) {43,012} -
28,843 28,843 156,780 127,937
431,721 431,721 558,059 126,338
$ 460,564 $ 460,564 $ 714,839 $ 254,275
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

MUNICIPAL COURT SECURITY & TECHNOLOGY FUND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

EXHIBIT B-8

Variance with

{GAAP Basis) Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Origlnal Final Actual {Negative)
Revenue:

Fines $ 16,000 § 16,000 § 9,309 $ (6,691}

Tolal revenues 16,000 16,000 9,309 {6,681)
Expenditures:
Current:

General government 1,200 1,200 8,654 {7,454}
Total expenditures 1,200 1,200 8,654 {7,454}
Excess (deficiency) of revenues {(under) expenditures 14,800 14,800 655 {14,145)

Cther financing sources (uses):
Total other financing sources {uses) - - = --
Net change in fund balance 14,800 14,800 655 (14,145)
Fund balance, beginning of year 91,106 91,106 91,106 --
Fund balance, end of year E 105,806 $ 105,906 $ 91,761 % {14,145)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

62




CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

DEBT SERVICE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Revenue:
Taxes
Interest
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges
Bond issuance cost
Total expenditures

Excess (deficlency) of revenues (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Issuance of certificates of obligation
Premium on bonds sold
Interest on bonds sold
Payment to refunding escrow agent
Total cther financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund bafance, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT B-9

Variance with
{GAAP Basis) Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Qriginal Final Aclual {Negalive)
$ 1,949,033 $ 1,949,033 $ 1967017 $ 17,984
1,000 1,000 551 (449)
1,950,033 1,950,033 1,967,568 17,535
1,178,656 1,178,656 1,303,177 {124,521)
797,564 797,564 664,781 132,783
2,000 2,000 106,527 (104,527}
1,878,220 1,978,220 2,074,485 {96,265)
(28,187) (28,187) (106,917) (78,730)
42,893 42,893 72,051 29,158
- - 4,503,642 4,503,642
- - 563,678 563,678
6,949 6,949
- -- {4,962,452) (4,962,452)
42,893 42,893 183,868 140,975
14,706 14,7086 76,951 62,245
451,153 451,153 451,153
$ 451,153 § 465,850 $ 528,104 $ 62,245
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS

Assels:
Cash and investments
Receivables { net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Accounts
Special assessments
Restricted assets:
Cash and invesiments
Total Assets

Liabliitles:
Due fo other funds
Total Liabilitles

Deferred Outlfows of Resources
Unavailable special assessmenis
Total Deferred Quiflows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Qutflows of
Resources

Fund balances:
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Total fund batances

Total Liabilittes and Fund balances

G4

Flamingo/
Luau Road

Assessment

$ 1,704

48
3,911

5,663

3,911
3,811

3,911

1,752

1,762

$ 1,762

Generat
Capital
Improvement

$ 439,541

2,562

442,103

$ 261441
561,447

2,562
2,062

264,003

178,100
178,100

$&




Bay Education
Cenler
_ Construction

$ 20,557
20,557

$ -
20,557
20,557

$ 20,557

Vehicle and
Equipment

Replacement

250,554

250,554

250,554

—00)

%

85

__ Obligation _

2005
Certilicate of

2,491,468

2,491,468

$

T 2,491,468

2,491,468

2,491,468

EXHIBIT B-10

Total
Nonmajor
Capital
Projects
Funds (See

712,356

48
6,473

2,491,468

3,210,345

261,441
261,441

6,473
6,473

267914

2,612,025
1,752
428,654

2,942 431

$._. .3.2083872




CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Revenue:
Intergovernmentai
Interest

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Capital cutlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues {under} expenditures
Cther financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Tolaf other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

66

Flamingo/
Luau Road
Assessment

21

21

(21}

21}

1,773

$ 1,762

General
Capital
Improvement
$ 597,294

597,294

583,461
583,461

13,833

13,833

164,267

§___178,100




Bay Educalion
Center
Construction

20,557

$ 20557

Vehicle and
Equipment
Replacement

187
187

148,015

148,015

(147,828)
189,700
189,700

41,872

208,682

$_ 250,854

67

2005
Certificate of
__ Obligation

6,236
6,236

6,236

2,485,232

$_ 2491468

EXHIBIT B-11

Total
Nonmajor
Capital
Projects
Funds (See
Exhibit B-2)

$ 597,294

6,423
603,717

21
731,476
731,497

(127,780)
189,700
188,700

61,920

2,880,611

$ 2,242,431




CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

ASSETS

Assels:
Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables { nst of allowances for uncollectibles):

Accounts
Total current assets

Noncurrent assels:
Capital assets:
Land
Improvemenis other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assels

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabllitles:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to other funds
Cuslomer deposils
Total current liabllifies

Noncurrent liabilities:
Total liabllities

NET ASSETS:
Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Unrestricted Net Assets

Total Net Assets

Enterprise Enterprise Tolat
Fund Fund Nenmajor
Community Enterprise
Sanitation Aqualic Funds (See
Fund Center Exhibit A-8)

$ 248,236 $ 1,974 ] 250,210
204,562 2i4 204,776
452,798 2,188 454,986
104,300 104,300

- 1,844,240 1,944,240

-- 19,689 19,689
{853,487} {853,487)

- 1,214,742 1,214,742
452,798 1,216,930 1,669,728

5 422,311 $ 5,186 $ 427,497
- 1,935 1,935

- 356 356

- 698 6508
422,311 8,175 430,486

422,311 8,175 430,486
30,487 {131,296) (100,809)

$ 30487 % 1,208,755 $ 1,239,242
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for services $

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal services
Contraciual services
Maintenance
Supplies
Other
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operaling Income (Loss)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES {(EXPENSES):
Intergovernmental revenue

Total Non-operating Revenues {Expenses)
Net Income (Loss) before Operating Transfers

TRANSFERS:
Interfund transfers in
Interfund transfers out
Change in Net Assels

Net Assets, beginning of year

Net Assets, end of year $

Enterprise Enterprise Total
Fund Fund Nonmajor
Community Enterprise
Sanitation Aquatic Funds (See
Fund Center Exhibit A-9)

16,994 $ 165,231 $ 182,225
16,994 165,231 182,225

-- 173,743 173,743
26,471 26,471

27,418 27,418

-- 102,593 102,593
- 1,384 1,384
- 66,066 66,066
397,675 387,675
16,994 (232,444) (215,450)
40,750 40,750

-- 40,750 40,750
16,994 (191,694} (174,700}

-- 132,155 132,155
16,994 {59,539) {42,545)
13,493 1,268,294 1,281,787
30,487 $ 1,208,755 $ 1,239,242
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers $
Cash Recelpts {Payments) for Operating
Transactions with Other Funds
Cash Paymenis to Employees .
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services

EXHIBIT B-14

Net Cash Provided {Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities:
Operating Grants Received
Transfers From Other Funds
Transfers To Other Funds

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital

Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Proceeds from sale of assels
Purchase of equipment

Net Cash Provided by Capital & Refated Financing
Aclivities

Net Increase {Pecrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 3

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Gash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating Income {Loss) $

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net

Cash Provided by Cperating Activities

Depreciation

Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease {Increase) In Receivables
Increase (Decrease) In Accounts Payable
Increase {Decrease) In Interfund Payables
Increase (Decrease) in Gustomer Deposils
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses

Total Adjustments

Total
Nonmajor
Community Enterprise
Sanitation Aquatic Funds (See
Fund Center Exhibit A-10)

16,994 § 165,231 % 182,225
.- (173,643) (173,643)
{15,342) (156,172) {171,514)
1,652 (164,584) (162,832)

- 40,750 40,750
- 132,156 132,155

- 172,905 172,305
-- {6,597) {6,587)
-- (6,597) (6,597}

1,652 1,724 3,376
246,584 250 246,834
248,236 $ 1,974 $ 250,210
16,994 § {232,344) $ (215,350}

- 68,066 66,066
{21,546) - {21,546)

6,204 1,775 7,979

- 356 356
- (437) (437)

(15,342) 67,760 52,418
1,652 % (164,584) $ (162,932}

Net Cash Provided {Used} by Operating Activilies $
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Rockport, Texas's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health.

Contents Page
Financial Trends 71
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's
financial perormance and well-being have changed over time.
Revenue Capacity 75
These schedules centain information 1o help the reader assess the factors affecting the City's
ability to generate its property and sales taxes.
Debt Capacity 81
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's
current levels of cuistanding debt and the City's abilily to issue additional debt in the future.
Demographic and Economic Information 88
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand
how the City's financial activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and
with other governments.
Operating Information 95

These schedules contain information about the City's operations and resources to help the
reader understand how the Cily's financial informaltion relates to the services the City provides
and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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TABLE C-6

CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)
UNAUDITED
Fiscal Property Sales & Use Franchise Occupancy Cther
Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Taxes Total

2005 $ 2,090,191 § 1624228 § 560,227 § 503,818 % 158,898 $ 5,037,363

2006 2,451,332 1,718,155 657,696 472,166 170,545 5,469,894
2007 2,793,123 1,714,042 712,156 533,215 175,044 5,927,580
2008 3,455,073 1,842,730 753,400 540,624 164,319 6,756,146
2009 3,837,024 1,726,846 803,466 467,038 180,616 7,014,990
2010 3,996,528 1,737,375 731,583 477,688 217,648 7,160,823
2011 4,011,625 1,799,286 801,629 647,278 180,877 7,440,695
2012 4,152,465 1,929,948 795,072 862,330 178,672 7,718,487
2013 4,380,000 2,051,342 844,466 698,934 198,923 8,174,665
2014 4,453,504 2,231,798 803,439 839,931 ** 199,923 8,602,188

Percent

Change

2005-2014 103.3% 37.4% 43.4% 66.7% 25.8% 70.8%

76



%000001

%000°00 1

5000001

0007001

0007001

%000°001

Q007001

%000 001

%C00°00t

%Q00 001

Bn[eA algexe] fenoy
10 abeaniag
B S anEBA
posSsassy ajgeExe

L0 379v1

SL9'88'vEY'L LL2E0 §r9'288'%Er' L (poe'geE'ee)
956'€62 1LY L 852¢°0 988'e62' L1y (bGO'S6EYE)
45€°998'80%°L £20E°0 458'998'80%" L (1L2£'060'SE}
EVE'E0T L8S L 00+E'D EYZ'e0v'L85'L  (229°8¥9'SE)
L8g' PP 00" L £852°0 L89'PPE OOV L (ELE'P6L LY}
2SS'E0L L8 L 0662°0 256°€04'198" L {606 LLH'05)
£08'700'882' L 06.2°0 £08'v00'882' L  (10E'285'59)
L80'8Y LRI L EYYEC L80°8YL'bYL L
87006568 8YS2°0 £v0°06+°558
LEE'881'068 § 15520 $LEE'BBL0SE &
EETY aley angp Auada.d reey
ajgexe] Xey passassy 1dwaxgy xe |
femoy waNa BEXE L B0 15597
palewnsy feloL

L2

2|gR|IEAR JOU S| UDgRWLOM| ,
1oHs1] [esfexddy Qunog sesuely (asinog

srgoLe'e £8S'61L9' vy 0sgeLy'el $90'922' 221 LZF9SL'2EE' L
sol'ese's LOE'EE0 0y 096'¥91L'EL ZVVLLO'GLL erL'vieeoe’t
S65'E8Y'L 2E0'/82'8E gso'Lgeel as0'9vF'ast L96'615°L02° L
€19'900'S LBEZ'vE8'eY 0EL'BIB'EH LEE LLLESL CIE'B19°/BE L
SIB'22L'S ¥ES 808 ¥y 0ZL'v082) 5E2'91P'69L ¥ 1°289'802°1
$29'LL0'9 Lee'L2svy 019%9L'EL ££9'606'E9L TLTEOEPRLL
SYLErL'S 85'985°Gy 05e'8¥62L POL'8PEESL LZF 0sp'eet’ L
$ «
BYO ssauisng ALBC0U Aliadon Aladoud
“ABDIBPUN BIISNpU] pue [2IUapSay
-leany [RIDJBUWIOD
Aliadoig reucsiag Ausdold [eay

goe t1L0g
ZLoe Loz
[Aors 2i0e
gLoe Liog
800e oLoe
800¢ 6002
4008 8002
900e £00g
S00T 900z
$ 002 S002
N F=ETN
1oy [BosiH
QzLIanyNn

SEY3A TWOSId NIL 1SV
ALY3dOHd IGVXYL 40 INIVA TYNLDY J3LYWILST ANY INTYA G3SS3SSY

SYX3L ‘1HOdMD0H 40 ALID



84

1088388y X8 | AUN0Y) sesurly 1:90Un0g

G091t LG50°0 £82£°0 L1280 9er0 168170 7102
#6511 85500 LEBE0 8528°C €ESL°0 §esL0 EL0Z
vertt 855070 £0.4€70 68020 90810 £€8G10 clog
L160°L LYE0°0 865270 00LED FrAS Y EL51°0 LLo2
616071 L¥S0°0 £BEE0 486270 SeELo 1S90 oLcZ
612071 ¥2s00 6+0€°0 0662°0 Z0EL0 £891°0 6002
6878071 S¥e00 AT 06420 S8LL0 S091°0 8002
£96E71 86£0°0 ¥8£2°0 IR g A $180°0 62810 1002
¥8LSTL 66¥0°0 LPee0 8¥5Z°0 L¥20°0 8081L°0 9002
41571 $ 65700 $  £8EE0 $ L5G2°0 $ 809070 $ 6¥5L0 3 €002
asi sIg Aunoy aley R ey JEIA
Aunon uanebiaeN sesuely 19340 192(] oiseq 23814

seuzly Aunon 2101 uones|go

SESUBLY [Blaua)
seley buiddeusan sorey 1034 AU
GzZ1anvynNn

SHY3A Tv0SId NIL LSV
SILYH XYL ALHIdOHd DNIddYTHIAO ANY LO3HId

8-0 378Vl SVX3AL ‘LHOJMOO0H 40 ALID



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO
UNAUDITED

TABLE CG-2

2014 2005
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Totat City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
Qaks at Bentwater, LP $ 7,663,740 1 0.5338% & - -
Wal-Mart Real Estate Bus Tr 7,132,010 2 0.4967% -- -- --
Rockport Harborfront, LP 6,954,274 3 0.4844% 4,974,642 2 0.5852%
H E Buit Grocery 6,457,480 4 0.4498% 9,301,259 1 1.0942%
C H Marina and Drystack LP 5,725,958 5 0.3988% - -
Lokseva, Inc 5,513,770 6 0.3840% - - -
Wal-Mart Stores East #440 5,378,973 7 0.3746% 2,538,004 7 0.2986%
Heritage Hotels Rockport LP 4,665,180 8 0.3249% 3,329,770 4 0.3917%
AEP Texas Central Comp 4,498,050 9 0.3133% 3,501,660 3 0.4119%
J&S Lagoons RV LLC 3,685,575 o 0.2497% - = =
Southweslern Bell Telephone -- - - 2,975,860 5 0.3501%
Bracht Lumber Co,, Inc. - - - 2,649,261 8 0.3117%
Rockbay Properties LTD - - - 2,509,850 8 0.2953%
Sea Mist, LTD - 2,402,440 g 0.2626%
White Marlin of Rockport LP - - - 2,301,300 10 0.2707%
Total $ 57575010 40101% $ 36,484,048 4.2920%

Source: Aransas County Appraisal District
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OQUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED

Fiscal
Year

2004
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

2014

{1) See the Schedule of Assessed and Estimalted Actual Value,
{2) Population data can be found in the Schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics.

$

General Bonded Debt Qutstanding

General Debt Net
Bonded Searvice Bonded
Debt Funds Debt
11,532,001 $ 277,024 $ 11,254,977
20,540,001 259,152 20,280,849
36,521,001 542,935 35,978,066
35,405,601 365,215 35,039,786
34,282,001 363,863 33,918,038
43,287,001 293,651 43,580,652
41,345,050 344,532 41,689,582
39,280,062 525,338 39,815,400
36,265,000 451153 36,716,153
38,661,237 528,104 38,133,133

82

Percentage of
Actual Taxable
Value of

Property{1}

1.32%
2.13%
3.17%
2.88%
2.64%
3.30%
3.05%
2.91%
2.68%

2.66%

$

TABLE C-12

Per

Capita(2)

1,442
2,243
3,884
3,718
3.457
4,442
4,455
4,255
3,924

4,075




CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
UNAUDITED

Governmental Unit
Debt Repaid With Property Taxes
Aransas County Independent School District
Aransas Counly
Aransas County Navigation District
Subtotal, Overlapping Debt
City Direct Debt

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt

Note: Cverlapping governmenis are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the City.
The percentage of overlapping debt applicable Is estimated by the percent of area of each government that

is within the boundaries of the City.

Ouistanding

$

Debt

34,889,925
17,880,651

4,720,000

Estimated
Perceniage

Applicable

65.030%

49.990%

49.990%

Information obtained from entities audited financlal statements and Aransas Counly Appraisal District.
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TABLE C-13

Estimated
Share of
Direct and
Ovetlapping
Debt

$ 22,688,918
8,938,537
2,359,528

33,986,984
38,677,426

$__72,664,410
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS TABLE C-17
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
UNAUDITED
2014 2005

Percentage Percentage

of Total Gity of Total City
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Aransas County ISD 496 1 - - --
Wal-Mart 232 2 - -- -
Wood Group Production Ser 225 3
H.E.B. 180 4
Aransas County 178 5
City of Rockpont 139 6 - - -- -
State of Texas 107 7 - -
Rockport Coastal Care Center 80 8
Gulf Poine Plaza 73 9 - - -
Qak Crest Nursing Center 70 10
Total 1,780¢ -- -- --

Source: Rockport Fulton Chamber of Commerce

Omitted Information is not available.
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Single Audit Section




Michael A. Arnold, PLLC

501 €. MARKET . CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT PHONE (361) 729-3546
FAX  (351)790-9692

P.O. BOX 1268
ROCKPORT, TEXAS 78381-1266

City Council

City of Rockport, Texas
622 E. Market
Rockport, Texas 78382

Members of the City Gouncil:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of
America and the standards applicable to financial audiis contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial stalements of the governmental
aclivities, the business-type aclivilies, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Gity
of Rockport, Texas's basic financial statements and have issued our report dated February 18, 2015

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial staiements, we considered City of Rockport, Texas's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) io determine the audit procedures that ave
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the tinancial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Gity of Rockport, Texas's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Rockpori, Texas's internal

control.

A deficiency in internal conirol exists when the design or operation of a conirel does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internat control, such that there Is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financlal
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal controf that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Qur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that

have not been identified.

o1




Compliance and Other Matters

As pari of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Rockport, Texas's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, coniracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial stalement amounts, However, providing an cpinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City of Rockport, Texas's Response to Findings

City of Rockport, Texas's response lo the findings fdenlified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs, City of Rockport, Texas's response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion

onit.
Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that iesling, and not o provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the eniity's internal
conirol or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

DIN A ety 77

Michael A. Arnold, PLLC

Rockport, TX
February 18, 2015
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Michael A. Arnold, PLLC

501 £. MARKET CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT PHONE (361) 729-3545
FAX  (361)7¢0-9592

P.O. 8OX 1266
ROCKPORT, TEXAS 78381-1266

City Council

City of Rockport, Texas
622 E. Market
Rockport, Texas 78382

Members of the Cily Council:
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Cily of Rockporl, Texas's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of City of Rockport, Texas's major federal programs City of Rockport, Texas's major federal programs
are identified in the summary of auditor's resulls section of the accompanying schedufe of findings and

gueslioned cosls.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsihility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Rockport, Texas's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with audiling standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audiling Slandards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Frofit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about whether noncompliance with the lypes of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a {est basis, evidence about Gity of Rockport, Texas's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in

the circumstances.

We believe thal our audit provides a reascnable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Gity of Rockport, Texas's compliance.

a3




Opinlon on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Rockport, Texas complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs Identitied in the summary of auditor's results seclion of the accompanying schedule of findings and

questioned costs
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of City of Rockport, Texas is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Rockport, Texas's internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material efiect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance In accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of City of Rockporl, Texas's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does nof allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
tederal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deftciencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detecied and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
conirof over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

QOur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance

that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiences. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we considered to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses

may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

2 S7 el FPLic

Michasl A. Arnold, PLLC

Rockport, TX
February 18, 2015
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

A. Summary of Auditor's Resuils
1. Financlal Siatemenis
Type of auditor's report issued: Unmoditied
Internal control over financial reporling:
One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes

One or more significant deficiencles identitied that
are not considered lo be malerial weaknesses? Yes

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? Yes

2. Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
One or more material weaknesses identified? Yes

One or more significant deficiencies identiffed that
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs: ifi

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reporled in accordance with section 510(a)
of Circular A-1337 Yes

{denilification of major programs:

CEDA Number(s} Name of Federal Program or Cluster

14 Community Development Block Grant
Doliar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? _ X Yes
B. Financial Statement Findings
NONE

C. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Cosls
NONE
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No

None Reported

No

No

None Reported

No

No



CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Finding/Recommendaticn

Current Status

Maragement's Explanation
If Not Implemented

NONE
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

N/A
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

EXHIBIT D-1

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through

Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Entity Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Passed Through Aransas Coounty, Texas:

Operation Stonegarden(OPSG) 97.067 $ 306,905
Total U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY :ﬂ 306,905
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Passed Through Texas General Land Office:

Communily Development Block Grant * 14.228 378,056
Passed Through Texas Depariment of Housing and Community Affairs:

Home Investment Partnership Program 14.239 267,998
Total U. S. Department of Housing & Urban Development 646,054
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 952,959

* Indicates clustered program under OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement

The accompanying noles are an integral part of this schedufe.
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CITY OF ROCKPORT, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

Basis of Preseniation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activily of Gity of
Rockport, Texas and is presented on the modilied accrual basis of accounting. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requiremenis of OMB Circular A-133, Audils of Siales,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general purpose financial

statements.
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